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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013
Nole 5 3
Income
Revenue
Recurrent revenue
Rates and levies 3(=) 66,757,314 76,006,921
Sale of goods and major services 3 (b) 1,565,036 2,231,530
Fees and charges 3(c) 8,494,614 12,212,233
Rental and levies 3(d} £,046,104 1,394,492
Interest received 3 (e} 5,659,345 4,865,653
Sales of contract and recoverable works 3N 5,840,887 5,385,290
Other recurrent income 3(g) 165,69] 474 469
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4{) 3,130,002 19,181,915
Proceeds from sales of land developed for sale 5 1,242,782 -
Total operating revenue 93,902,775 121,752,503
Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4 (i1} 50,700,197 21,112,152
50,700,197 21,112,152
Total revenue 144,602,972 142,864 655
Capital income 6 1,128.046 -
Total income 2 145,731,018 142,864,655
Expenses
Recurrent expenses
Employee benefits 8 (32,916,666) (30,232,850)
Materials and services 9 (43,351,363) (64,382,798)
Current cost of developed land soid 5 (413,962} -
Finance costs 10 (1,015,735) {840,416}
Depreciation and amortisation 11 (19,402,835) {19,809.614)

(97,100,561} (115,265.678)

Total operating expenses
Capital expenses

Other capitai expenses 12 (54,215.306) {11,324,579})
Total expenses {151,315.867} {126.590.257)
Net result (5,584,849 16,274,398
Other comprehensive income
Items that will nof be reclassified to net result
Increase / (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 63,411,436 (3,185,945}
Total other comprehensive income for the year 63411436 3,185,945
Total comprehensive income for the year 57,826,387 13,088,453

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2014

2014 2013
Note $ 3

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 14 66,666,854 113,587,092

Cash investments i8 41,137,038 30,562,290

Trade and other receivables 15{a) 11,335,040 13,845,029

Inventories 16 26,924 902 9,054,424
Total current assets 146,063,834 167,948,835
Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables 15(b) 8,370,458 7,668,867

Investment properties 1% 13,513,958 13,037,737

Property, plant and equipment 20(a) 981,339,904 895,210,258

Intangible assets 22 20913 34,052
Total non-current assets 1,003,254,233 915,950,914

TOTAL ASSETS 1,149.318.067 1,083,899,749
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 15,653,459 19,740,465

Provisions 24 298,566 359,144

Borrowings 25 1,417,222 1,309,402

Other 26 300421 143,081
Total current liabilities 17.669.668 21,552.092
Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 1,139,941 1,459,135

Provisions 24 4,739,853 2,698,451

Borrowings 25 38,320,946 40,238,159
Total non-current liabilities 44,200,740 44.395,745

TOTAL LIABILITIES 61,870,408 65,947,837
NET COMMUNITY ASSETS 1,087,447.659 1,017,951,912
Community equity

Asset revaluation surplus 27 314,929,984 251,518,548

Retained surplus (deficiency) 28 667,711,436 636,808,984

Reserves 29 104,806,238 129,624,380
TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY 1,087,447,659 1,017,951,912

The above statement showld be read in confunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 36 June 2014

2014 2013
Note 5 )
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Receipts from customers 99,320,643 109,831,864
Non capital grants, subsidies and contributions 1,993,553 16,626,174
Interest received 5,282,714 5,177,759
Proceeds from sales of land developed for sale 1,242,782 -
Payments
Payments o suppliers and employees (108,478,070) (103,570,410)
Finance costs (2,002,052) (716,171}
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 35 £2,631.370) 27,349216
Cash flows from investing activities
Commonwealth grants 189,534 4023318
State government subsidies & grants 41,317,368 5,735,346
Capital contributions 6,379,687 11,336,678
Payments for property, plant and equipment (79,294,335 (40,740,244)
Net transfer (to) from cash investments 18 {41,137038) -
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 7 160,000 205,606
Net movement in loans to controlled entities & associates (597.098) {75,000)
Net cash inflow {outflow) from investing activities (72,981,882) {19.513,796)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 25 - 29,800,000
Repaymenl of borrowings 25 (1,869,276) (386,659)
Net cash inflow {outflow) from financing activities (1,869,276) 29413341
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held (77482.528) 37,248,761
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 144,149,382 106,200,621
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 14 66,666,854 144,149,382

The above statement should be read in confimction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

QAD
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1 Significant accounting pelicies

1. 1 Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial statements are for the peried 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 and have been
prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local
Government Regulation 2012 . Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and other
authoritative pronouncements issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
revaluation of certain non-current assets.

The current-year financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Government Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013.

The amounts used to calculate the three reported measures are prepared on an acerial basis and are
drawn from the Council's audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014,

1. 2 Statement of compliance
These general purpose financial statements comply with all aceounting standards and interpretations
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to Council's operations
and effective for the current reporting period. Because the Council is a not-for-profit entity and the
Australian Accounting Standards include requirements for not-for-profit entities which are inconsistent
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), to the extent these inconsistencies are applied,
these financial statements do not comply with FFRS.
The main impacts are the offsetting of revaluation and impainment gains and losses within a class of
assets, and the timing of the recognition of non-reciprocal gram revenue.

i. 3 Constitution
The Isaac Regional Couneil is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is
domiciled in Australia.

1. 4 Date of authorisation
The financial statements are authorised for issue on the date it was submitted Lo the Auditor-General for

final signature, This is the date the management certificate is signed.

.5 Currency
The Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency.,

1. 6 Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards
In the current year, Council adopled all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by th
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant 10 its operations and effective for the
current reporting period. The adoption of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not
resulted in any material changes to Council’s accounting policies. However the Application of445B /3
Fair Value Measurement and AASB 201 1-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 13 for the fivst time this year has resulted in greater disclosures.

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Standards and Interpretations listed below

were in issue but not yet effective.
Effective for annual

report periods

beginning on are

after
AASB 9 Financial Instruments {December 2009} I January 2017
AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2014
AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2014
AASB 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2014
AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements (replaces the existing standard together with AASB 10 I January 2014
AASB 128 Investments in Assoctates and Joint Ventures (replaces the existing standard] I January 2014
AASEB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 1 July 2014
2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2009) 1 January 2015

Page 6
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

AASB 2010-7 Amendments te Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010} 1 January 2015

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Austrafian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and ] January 2014
Joint Arrangements Standards

AASB 2012-3 Amendments 1o Australian Accounting Standards — Qffsetting Financial Assets and | January 2014
Financial Liabilities

[AASB 132}

AASB 2013-1 Amendments to AASB 1049 - Relocation of Budgetary Reporting Requirements 1 July 2014

AASB 2013-3 Amendmenis to AASB 136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Now-Financial Assets 1 January 2014

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Ausiralian Accounting Standards — Novation of Derivatives and I January 2014
Continuation of Hedge Accounting [AASB 139]

AASE 2013-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Investment Entities [AASB 1, AASB 1 January 2014
3, AASB 7, AASB 10, AASB 12, AASB 107, AASB 112, AASB 124, AASB 127, AASB 132, AASB

134 & AASB 139}

AASB 2013-6 Amendments to AASB 136 arising from Reduced Disclosure Regquirements 1 January 2014
AASB 2013-7 Amendments to AASB 1038 arising from AASE 14} in relation to consolidation and i January 2014
interests of policyholders [AASB 1038]

AASE 2013-8 Amendmenis to Australian Acconnting Standards — Australian Iimplementation Guidance | January 2014
Jor Not-for-Profit Entities - Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, AASB 12 & AASB 1049]

AASB2013-9 Amendments to Australion Accounting Standards — Conceptual Framework, Materiality  Refer Title
and Financial Instruments column
[Operative dates: Part A Conceptual Framework — 20 Dec 2013; Part B Materiality — 1 Jan 2014; Part C

Financial Instruments - 1 Jan 2015)

Interpretation 21 Levics | January 2014

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 2015)

AASB 9, which replaces AASB 139 Financial Instramenis: Recognition and Measurement, is effective
for reporting periods beginning on or afier I January 2015 and must be applied retrospectively. The main
impact of AASB 9 is to change the requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures
associated with financial assets.

Under the new requirements the four current categories of Snancial assets stipulated in AASB 139 will be
replaced with two measurement categories: fair value and amortised cost and financial assets will only be
able {0 be measured at amorised cost where very specific conditions are met,

As a result, Counci) will be required to measure its financial assets at fair value.

Conselidation Standards
The following accounting standards apply to Isaac Regional Council as from reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014
. AASE 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
AASB 11 Joint Arrangements
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements
AASB 128 Investments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures
AASB 201 1-7 Amendments to Australian Accownting Standards arising from the Consolidation

and Joint Arrangements Standards
AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation

Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities - Control and Struciured Entities

These standards aim to improve the accounting requirements for consolidated financial statements, joint
arrangements and off balance sheet vehicles.

AASBI10 redefines and clarifies the concept of controt of another entity, and is the basis for determining
which entities should be consolidated into another entity's financial statements.

AASB 12 contains the disclosure requirements for interests in other entities including unconsolidated
structured entities,

Page 7
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1

1.

1.

1.

7

B (a)

8§ (1)

8 (c}

8 (d}

8 (e)

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent fron
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates
and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the
following financial statement notes.

Investment Property - note 1.16 and note 19

Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment - note 1.17 and note 21

bmpairment of property, plant and equipment - note 1.19 and note 20 (a)

Provisions - note 1.22 and note 24

Valuation of finance leases - note 1.20

Contingencies - note 32

Revenue

Rates, levies, grants and other revenue are recognised as revenue on receipt of funds or earlier upon
unconditional entitiement to the funds.

Rates and levies

Where rate monies are received prior to the commencement of the rating/levying period, the amount is
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are received, otherwise rates are recognised at the
commencement of rating period.

Grants and subsidies

Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year
in which Council obtains control over them. An equivalent amount is ransferred from retained eamnings
to the relevant reserve until the funds are expended. Unspent non-reciprocal capital grants are placed in
the constrained grants, subsidies and contributions reserve.

Council spends all recurrent grants in the year received and therefore Council has not established a
reserve for this purpose.

Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised as the various performance
obligations under the funding agreement are fulfilled. Council does not currently have any reciprocal

grants.

Nen-cash contributions
Non-cash contributions with a value in excess of the recognition thresholds, are recognised as revenue
and as non-current assets, Non-cash contributions below the thresholds are recorded as revenue and

expenses.

Physical assets contributed to Council by developers in the form of road works, stormmwater, water and
wastewater infrastructure and park equipment are recognised as revenue when the development becomes
“on maintenance” (i.¢. the Council obtains control of the assets and becomes liable for any ongoing
maintenance) and there is sufficient data in the form of drawings and plans to determine the approximate
specifications and values of such assets. All non-cash contributions are recognised at the fair value of the
contribution received on the date of acquisition.

Cash contributions

Developers also pay infrastructure charges for trunk infrasiructure, such as pumping stations, treatment
works, mains, sewers and water pollution control works. These infrastructure charges are not within the
scope of AASB Interpretation 18 because there is no performance obligation associated with them.
Consequently, the infrastructure charges are recognised as income when received.

Rental income
Rental revenue from investment and other property is recogrised as income on a periedic straight line
basis over the lease term.

Interest
Interest received from term deposits is acerued pver the term of the investment,

QAO
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

I. 8 (g Sales revenue
Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
buyer, generally when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods.
The council generates revenues from a number of services including child care and contracts for road and
carthworks, Revenue from contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupment of materia
costs together with an hourly charge for use of equipment and employees. Contract revenue and
associated costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the
reporting date. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable in relation to
that activity. Where consideration is received for the service in advance it is included in other liabilities
and is recognised as revenue in the period when the service is performed.

1. 8 (b Fees and Charges
Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds. Generally this is upon
lodgement of the relevant applications or documents, issuing of the infringement notice or when the
service is provided.

1. 9 Financial assets and liabilities
Council recognises a financial asset or a financial Hability in its Statement of Financial Position when, an
only when, Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Isaac Regional Council has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial liabilities held at
balance date as foltows

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents (note 1.10)

Receivables - measured at amortised cost less any impainment (note 1.11)
Other finaneial assets (finance leases) - measured at fair value (note 1.20)

Financial liabilities
Payables - measured at ainortised cost (note 1.21)
Borrowings - measured at amortised cost (note 1.23)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately from each other and offsetting has not
been applied.

All other disclosures relating to the measurement and financial risk management of financial instruments
are included in note 38.

1. 1¢ Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at the
year end, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other shori-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafis.

1. 11 Receivables
Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed
purchase price / comtract price. Setilernent of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date.

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically and if there is objective evidence that Council
will not be eble to collect all amounts due, the carrying amount is reduced for impairment, The Joss is
recognised in finance costs. The amount of the impairment is the difference between the assel’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate.

All known bad debts were written-off prior 10 30 June, Subsequent recoveries of amounts previcusly
written off in the same period are recognised as finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
if an amount is recovered in a subsequent period it is recognised as revenue.

Because Council is empowered under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2009 to sell an
owner's property to recover outstanding rate debts, Council does nat impair any rate receivables.

Loans and advances are recognised in the same way as other receivables, Tenns are as per writlen
agreement and interest charged at negotiated rates. Security is held over assets if applicable.

QAO

Page 9 .
e certified statements




ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1.

12

13

16

17

Inventories
Stores and raw malernials held for resale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value and
include, where applicable, direct material, direct labour and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed
overheads, Costs are assigned on the basis of weighted average cost.

Inventories held for distribution (intenal consumption) are
+ goods to be supplied at no or nominal charge, and
» goods to be used for the provision of services at no or nominal charge,
Inventory for distribution is valued at cost, adjusted, when applicable, for any loss of service potential.

Land acquired by Council with the intention of reselling it (with or without further development) is
classified as inventory. This land is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. As an inventory
itern, this land held for resale is treated as a current asset. Proceeds from the sale of this land will be
recognised as sales revenue on the signing of a valid unconditional contract of sale.

Other financial assets
Other financial assets are recognised at cost.
At present Council does not have any other financiai assets.

Non current assets held for sale
ltems of property, plant and equipment are reclassified as non-current assets as held for sale when the
carrying amount of these assets will be recovered principally through a sales transaction rather than
continuing use. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are available for immediate sale in their
present ¢ondition and management believe the sale is highly probable. Non-current assets held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carying amount and fair value less cost to sell and are not depreciated, On
the eventual sale of these assets a gain or loss is recognised.

Investments
Term deposits in excess of three months are reported as investments, with deposits of less than three

months being reported as cash eguivalents.

Investment property
Investment property is property held for the primary purpose of earning rentals and/or capital
appreciation, This includes land held by Council for a currently undelennined future use.

Investment property is measured using the fair value model. This means all investment property is
initially recognised at cost {including transaction costs) and then subsequently revalued annually at the
balance date by a registered valuer. Where invesiment property is acquired at no or nominal cost it is
recognised at fair value,

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property is classiffed as
investment property. Investment property under construction is measured at fair value, unless fair value
cannot be reliably determined for an individoal property {in which case the property concerned is
measured at cost until fair value can be reliably determined),

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment propenty are recognised as incomes or
expenses respectively for the period in which they arise. Investnent property is not depreciated and is not
tested for impairment,

Property, plant and equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment Joss. lems of plant and equipment with a total
value of less than 85,000, and infrastructure assets and buildings with a total value of less than $10,000
are treated as an expense in the year of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
capitalised.
The classes of property plant and equipment recognised by the council are reporied in note 20 (a),

Page 10
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes te the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

(a}

®)

(c}

(d}

(e)

Acquisition of asseis

Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets
given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including freight in, architect’s fees and
engineering design fees and all other establishment costs,

Property, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and
revenues at fair value by Council valuation where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the
respective assel class. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Capital and operating expenditure

Wage and materials expenditure incurred for the acquisition or construction of assets are treated as capita
expenditure. Routine operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational
capacity of the non-current asset is expensed as incurred, while expenditure that relates to replacement of
a major component of an asset to maintain its service potential is capitalised.

Valuation

Land and improvements, buildings, major plant and a1l infrastructure assets are measured on the
revaluation basis, at fair value, in accordance with44SB /16 FPreperty, Plant & Equipment and AASB
13 Fair Value Measurement, Other plant and equipment and work in progress are measured at cost.

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying
amount of each class of asset does not materially differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is
achieved by engaging independent, professionally qualified valuers to determine the fair value for each
class of property, plant and equipment assets at least once every 3 years, This process involves the valuer
physically sighting a representative sample of Council assets across all asset ¢lasses and making their
own assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspection.

In the intervening years Council engages independent, professionally qualified valuees to perform a
"deskiop” valuation. A desktop valuation involves management providing updated information to the
valuer regarding additions, deletions and changes in assumptions such as useful life, residual value and
condition rating. The valuer then determines suitable indices which are applied to each of these asset
classes,

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the
asset revaluation surplus, except 1o the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously
recognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charped as an expeise to
the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revalnation surplus of that asset class.

On revaluation, accumnulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying
amount of the asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful life.

Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they
relate.

Capitai work in progress
The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Council includes the cost of
purchased services, materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of labour overheads.

Investmemt property under construction is classified as investment property, Refer to note 1.16 for furthe
information,

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life. Depreciation on other property, plant and
equipment assets is calculated on a straight-line basis 50 as 1o write-ofY the net cost or revalued amount of
each depreciable asset, less its estimated residual value, progressively over its estimated usefut life to the
Council. Management believe that the straight-line basis appropriately reflects the pattemn of consumption
of all Council assets.

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of intemnally constructed assets, from the
time an asset is completed and commissioned ready for use.

QAO
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1. 18

19

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these
components are assigned useful lives distinet from the asset to which they relate. Any expenditure that
increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new
depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset 1o the Council.

Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets that are above the asset recognition threshold are
capitalised and depreciated on the same basis as the asset to which they relate.

The depreciable amount of improvements to or on leasehold land is allocated progressively over the
estimated useful Tives of the improvements to the Council or the unexpired period of the lease, whichever

is the shorter.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and resideal values of property, plant and equipment assets
are reviewed at the end of each reponting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in
the pattern of consumption, physical wear and tear, technical or commercial ebsolescence, or
management intentions. The condition assessments performed as part of the annual valuation process for
assets measured at written down current replacement cost are used to estimate the useful lives of these
assets at cach reporting date. Details of the range of estimated useful lives for each class of asset are
shown in note 20 (a).

Land under roads

Land under roads acquired before 30 June 2008 is recognised as a non-cuarent asset where the Council
holds title or a financial lease over the asset. The Isaac Regional Council currently does not have any sucl
land holdings.

Land under the road network within the Council area that has been dedicated and opened for public use
under the Land Act 1994 orthe Land Title Act 1994 is not controlied by council but is conirolled by the
state pursuant to the relevant legislation. Therefore this land is not recognised in these financial
statements.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with a cost or other vaiue exceeding $10,000 are recognised as intangible assets in the
financial statements, items with a lesser vatue being expensed.

Expenditure on research activities relating to intemnally-generated intangible assets is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred,

Costs associated with the development of computer software are capitalised and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of expected benefit to Council.

Amortisation methoeds, estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted where appropriate. Details of the estimated useful lives assigned to each
class of intangible assets are shown in note 22.

Impairment of non current assets

Each non-current physical and intangible asset and group of assets is assessed for indicators of
impainnent annuaily. 1f an indicator of possible itnpairment exists, the Council detennines the asset's
recoverable amount. Any smount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds the recoverzble amount
is recorded as an impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use.

An impaimment [oss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the
assel is carried at a revalued amount, When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment
loss is offset against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available.

Where an impairment Joss subsequenntly reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset &
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is reated as a revaluation surplus
increase,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1. 20

1. 21

1. 22

(@)

(b)

(c)

{s)]

1. 23

Leases

Leases of plant and equipment under which the Council as lessee/lessor assumes/transfers substantially al
the risks and benefits incidental {o the ownership of the asset, but not the tegal ownership, are classified a
finance [eases. Other leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are
classified as operating leases.

The council has no finance leases,

Operating leases
Payments made under operating Jeases are expensed in equal instalments over the accounting perieds
covered by the lease term, except where an altemative basis is more representative of the pattern of

benefits 10 be derived from the leased property.

Payables

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the
agreed purchase/contract price net of applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts
owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day terms.

Liabilities - employee benefits

Liabilities are recognised for employee benefits such as wages and salaries, annual leave and long service
leave in respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date. Liabilities for employee
benefits are assessed at each reporting date. Where it is expected that the leave will be paid in the next
twelve months the Hability is treated as a current liability. Otherwise the liability is treated as non-current,

Safaries and wages

A ligbility for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporiing date
al cutrent pay rates in respect of employees' services up to that date. This liability represents an accrued
expense and is included in note 23 as a payable.

Annusai leave

A liability for annual leave is recognised. Amounts expecied to be settled within 12 months {the current
portion) are calculaied on current wage and salary levels and includes related employee on-costs.
Amounis not expected to be settled within 12 months (the non-current portion) are calculated on projecte
future wage and salary levels and related employee on-costs, and are discounted to present values. This
liability represents an accrued expense and is reported in Note 23 as a payable,

Superannuation

The superannuation expense for the reporting pericd is the amount of the contribution the Iocal
government makes to the superannuation plan which provides benefits to its employees.
Details of those armangements are set out in nole 33,

Leng service leave

A Hability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to
be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the liability
is calculated using current pay rates and projected future increases in those rates and includes related
employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probability of the employee remaining in the
Council's employment or other associated employment which would result in the Council being required
to meet the Hability. Adjustments are then made to aliow for the proportion of the benefit eamed to date,
and the result is discounted (o present value. The interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Govermment
guaranteed securities at the reporting date are used to discount the estimated future cash ocutflows to their
present value.

This Jiability is reported in note 24 as a provision.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Bormowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recogmition these liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012 council adopis an annual debt policy tha
sets out council's planned borrowings for the next nine years. Council’s current policy is to borrow for
capital projects and land development, for a term no lenger than the expected life of the asset or the
development project. Council also atms to comply with the Queensland Treasury Corporation's
borrowing guidelines and ensure that sustainability indicators remain within acceptable levels at all times.

"QAO
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1. 24

(a)

1. 15

I, 26

All borrowing costs relating to capital assets are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs relating to land development are capitalised to Jand held for resale,

Restoration provisien

A provision is made for the cost of restoration in respect of refuse tips where il is probable the Council
will be liable, or required, to incur such a cost on the cessation of use of these facilities. The provision is
measured at the expected cost of the work required, discounted to current day values using the interest
rates attaching to Commenwealth Government guaranteed securities with a maturity date corresponding
to the anticipated date of the restoration.

Within each restoration provision there may be many site locations some of which can be on couneil
controlled land and some which are not. The following accounting treatments apply depending on the siie
location.

Restoration on land not controlled by Council

Where the restoration site is on State reserves which the council does not control, the cost of the
provisions for restoration of these siies has to be treated as an expense in the year the provision is first
recognised. Changes in the provision due to either time, discount rate or expected future cost are treated
as an expense or income in the reporting in which they arise.

Restoration on land controlled by Council

Restoration sites that are situated on Council controlled land and are classified as land and improvement
assets. The provision for restoration is, therefore, included in the cost of the land and amontised over the
expected useful life. Changes in the provision not arising from the passing of time are added 1o or
deducted from the asset revaluation surplus for land. If there is no available revaluation swrplus, increases
in the provision are treated as an expense and recovered out of future decreases (if any).

Changes to the provision resulting from the passing of time {the unwinding of the discount) are treated as
a finance cost.

The council has the fbllowing restoration provisions

Refuse sites
The provision represents the present value of the anticipated future cosis associated with the closure of

the refuse sites, decontamination and monitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites.

The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application of environmental legislation,
site closure dates, available technologies and engincering cost estiimates. These uncertainties may result in
future actual expenditure differing from amounts currently provided. Because of the fong-term nature of
the liability, the most significant uncertainty in estimating the provision is the costs that will be incurned.

The provision recognised for refisse sites is reviewed at Jeast annually and updated based on the facts and
circurnstances available at the time. Managemem estimates that a site will close in 2017 and that the
restoration wiil occur in 2018 with other sites closing progressively over the subsequent years as
disclosed in note 24,

Asset revaluation surplus

The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in value of property, plant and
equipment that do not result from the use of those assets. Net incremental changes in the carrying value
of classes of non-current assets since their initial recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluation

surplus,

Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a class of assets.
Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offset first against the amount
remaining in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of that class, Any excess is treated as an expense.

When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of that asset is retained in the
asset revaluation surplus and not transfermred to retained swplus.

Retained surplus (deficit)

This represents the amount of Council's net funds not set aside in reserves to meet specific future needs.

QAO
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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1.

27

28

Reserves held for funding future capital expenditure

These are cash backed reserves and represent funds, from revenue sources, that are accumulated to meet
anticipated fiture capital asset funding requirements. In each case the amount relates to a perceived
future requirement which is not currently a liability.

Unspent [oan cash reserve

The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the amount of cash (reported within
cash and cash equivalents) which has been received in respect of approved loan funds from QTC that
have been drawn down but not expended on the specific capital projects. As the funds are expended they
are transferred to the council's capital account. Refer notes 14 and 29 (a) .

Constrained grants and subsidy contributions reserve

The amousts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the amount of cash (reporied within
cash and cash equivalents} which has been received in respect of capital works where the required capital
works have not yet been carried out. Where non-reciprocal grants, subsidies and contributions are
received for specific capital projects, amounts equivalent to the capital prants received are transferred
from retained surplus to the constrained works reserve. When the grant monies are expended on the
respective projects, an equivalent amount is transferred out of the constrained works reserve to retained
surphus. The Council does not reallocate amounts in this reserve to any other reserve or for any other

purpose.

Buildings reserve
This reserve has been established to provide funding for fitture housing/building projects.

Plant and equipment reserve
This reserves was created to provide funding for new plant and equipment costs.

Roads infrastructure reserve
This reserve has been established for future construction work on roads and to enable the future
introduction of business principles to construction operations.

Water reserve
This reserve has been established to provide funding for future water projeets.

Sewerage reserve
This reserve has been established to provide funding for future sewerage projects.

Other infrastructure reserve
Fhis reserve has been established for future projects associated with infrastructure assets within Isaac

Regional Courneil.

Community facilities reserve
This reserve has been established 1o provide funding for future community facilities within Isaac Regiona
Council,

Carry over capital reserve
This reserve has been established to provide funding for carry over capital projects not funded through
carry over of funded depreciation,

Mines capital projects reserve
This reserve has been established to provide funding for specific eapital projects funded from special
charges.

Reserves held for funding future recurrent expenditure

These are cash backed reserves and represent funds that are accumnulated within the Council 1o meet
anticipated future recurrent or operating expenditure needs. In each case the amount refates o a
perceived future requirement which is not currently a liability,

Natural disaster reserve
This reserve has been established 1o fund the trigger point for any future natural disasters which may
accur for Isaac Regional Council,

Constrained works - operational grants reserve
This reserve has been established to constrain unspent grant monies.

QAO
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L

31

32

33

Planning & environmental enforcement - operational reserve
This reserve has been established 10 fund the compliance requirements of planning and environmental
applications in the proceeding year.

Mines operating projects reserve
This reserve has been established to identify operating revenue that has the potential to be refunded fo the

contributor,

NDRRA funding - operational grants reserve
This reserve has been established to constrain unspent NDRRA funding received in advance.

Community recovery - operational grants 2014
Reserves held for funding future recurrent expenditure as yet 10 be identified under the Community

Recoveries Grant purposes.

National competition policy
The Council has reviewed its activities and has identified 4 activities that are business activities. Details

of these activities can be found in note 39.

Rounding and comparatives
The financial statements have been rounded to the nearest $1.

Comparative information has been restated where necessary 1o be consistent with disclosures in the
current reporting period.

Trust funds held for outside partics
Funds held in the trust account on behalf of outside parties include those funds from the sale of land for
arrears in rates, deposits for the contracted sale of land, security deposits lodged to guarantee
performance and unclained monies {(e.g. wages) paid into the trust account by the Council. The Council
perfonns only a custodian role in respect of these monies and because the monies cannot be used for
Council purposes, they are not considered revenue nor brought 1o account in the financial statements,

For details see note 34,

Taxation
Income of locat authorities and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation except for

Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax (‘GST"). The net amount of GST recoverable from the
ATO or payable to the ATO is shown as an asset or liability respectively.

The Council pays payroll 1ax to the Queenstand Government on certain activities.

Carbon Pricing

Council has been, and will continue to be indirectly impacted through increased costs arising from the carbon
pricing mechanism. Taking this into consideration the council has carefully assessed the current and
immediate future political predictions on carbon tax pricing and considers that the impact on the council's
current financial position will not be material. The council will continue to monitor the impact of carbon
pricing as future political policies are detenmined.
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Notes to the financial staternents
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1 (a) Components of council functions

The activities refating to the Council's components reported on in Note 2 (b) are as follows

+

Office of the CEO
The Office of the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day to day management of all functions of Council and to ensure that the
decisions and policy of Council is carried out. The Chief Executive Officer also provides adviee to the Councillors and is the custodian of

records and documents of Council,

Organisational Development
Organisational Development provides business improvement, arts and culture, libraries and community development, media, marketing
and cominunication, community and stakeholder engagement, organisational change, and cultural development.

Corporate & Financial Services
Corporate and Financial Services provide financial services, rating, information technology, human resource services, business and
commercial services, procurement, tenders and contracts,

Engineering & Infrastructure
Engineesing and Infrastructure provide the following functions; emergency management, long term asset planning, project management,
project delivery, servicing of assets, roads and urban services, water and sewerage and resource recovery.

Built & Natural Environment
Built and Natural Environment have a responsibility to provide the following functions including; economic development and tourisim,

natural environment, property, compliance and statutory planning.

Legal & Governance
Legal and Governance are responsible for in-house legal services, governanee and risk, land development, customer service and records

management.
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2 Analysis of results by function

(b) Revenue, expenses and assets have been attributed to the following functions

Functions Income Total Tatal Net Assets
Granis Other income expenses result
for period
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
3 by § ;) 5 $
Office of the CEQ - - - {242,513) 242,513 -
Organisational Development 396,558 216,165 613,123 6,012,314 {5,399,191) -
Corporate & Financial Services 1,192,677 57,518,802 58,711,479 18,968,233 35,743,246 266,487,298
Engineering & Infrastructure 42,681,783 34,788,169 77,469,952 118,984,382 (41,514,430) 858,312,610
. Built & Notwral Environment | 53978 7597088 | _ 76sLles |  s7a0002|  loudes| .
Lepal & Governance 24255 1261,043 1.285.298 1,853,445 (568,151} 24,518,159
Total 44,349,651 101,381,367 145,731,018 151,315,867 (5,584,849} 1.149.318.067
Prier Year

On July £,2013 the council underwent an organisationai restructure, re-defining the programs and the funciions that are grouped within each program.
The ability of council to prepare revised comparative figures for last year under the current structure can not be achieved with any certainty or sufficient
accuracy to make the comparatives of use to the reader, when comparing these figures to the current year results, The council has therefore not reported
any comparatives figures this year in this note.
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2014 2013
Note 5 $
Revenue analysis
(2) Rates and levies 1.8(a)
General rates 45476,86% 43,890,335
Separate rates 5,077,801 17,610,979
Disaster management levy 116,994 101,974
Water 8,854,304 7,509,656
Waier consumption, remtal and sundries 34,040 428,840
Sewerage 7,863,025 6,605,276
Sewerage connection fees 29,770 229257
Garbage charges 3,666,200 3,100,840
Total rates and utility charge revenue 71,119,003 79.477,157
Less: Discounts (4,190,382) (3,303,972}
Less: Pensioner remissions (171,307 {166,264)
Nel rates and utility charges 66,757,314 76,006,921
(b) Sales revenue 1.8(g)
Sale of services
Recycling services 454,077 176,840
Green waste services 39403 251,945
Airport services 1,072,556 1,802,745
1,566,036 2,231,530
(¢} Fees and charges 1.8(h}
Statutery fees and charges include
Development fees 1,353,853 1,724,721
Building fees & charges 125,595 254,053
Environmental fees 65,027 197,542
Animal registrations 139,745 101,296
Other statutory fees - 5,345
User fees and charges 6,810,394 9,928,276
8.494,614 12,212,233
{d) Rental and levies 1.8(e) :
Housing rentals 469,026 781,888
Investment property rentals 287,324 342,069
Community housing rental income 64,714 97,627
Other rental income 225,040 172,908
1,046,104 1,394,492
{e) Interest received L.3(f)
Investients 4,943 742 4,702,145
Loan to controlled entities 597,008 -
Other sources 20,095 -
Over due rates and utility charges 08410 163,508
5,659.345 4,865,653
(f) Sales of contract and recoverable works 1.8(g)
Revenue 5.840.887 5,385,290
5,840,887 5,385,290
The amount recognised as revenue from contract works during the period is the
amount receivable in respect of invoices issued during the period.
The contract work carried out is rot subject to retentions.
(g) Other recurrent income
Other income 165,691 474 469
165,691 474.469
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2014 2013
Note 5 5
4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 1.8(b)
{i) Recurrent - grants, subsidies, contributions
and donations
General purpose grants 2,123,463 4,931,436
Commonwealth government subsidies and grants 198,981 -
State government subsidies & grants 520,305 13,919,034
Donations 1,278 75,945
Contributions 285,975 255,500
3,130,002 19,181,915
A prepayment of 2014/15 Financial Assistance Grant was not paid to Council in
June 2014, resulting in the reduction of grant revenue recognise at June 2014,
The prepaid grant of $2,984,692, recognised in June 2013 for the 2013/2014
period, was set aside in a reserve at June 2013 and is now transferred to retained
carnings for funding in this period,
(i) Capital - grants, subsidies, and contributions
{a)}) Monetary revenue designated for capital funding purposes
Comaonwealth government grants 189,534 4,023,818
State government subsidies & granis 31,679,281 5,735,346
NDRRA flood damage grants 37,638,087 -
Contributions 6,379,687 11,352,988
47,886,580 21,112,152
{(b) Non-moenelary revenue received is analysed as follows F.8{c)
Developer assets contributed by developers at fair value 2,813,608 -
2,813,608 -
Total capital revenue 50,700,197 21,112,152
(iti) Conditions over contributions
Non-reciprocal grants and contributions which were recognised as revenues
during the reporting period and which were obtained on the condition that they be
expended in a general specified manner (eg.headworks) by the contributor but
had not been expended at the reporting date,
Grants for infrastructure - 6,938,051
Contributions for infrastructure 6,379,687 11,352,988
6,379,687 18,261.039
Non-reciprocal grants and contributions which were recognised as revenues
during a previous reporting period and were expended during the current
reporling period.
Grants for infrastructure 542,687 383,126
Grants for operations expenditure 3,111,941 -
Contributions for infrastructure - 267,002
3.654.628 650,128
5 Gain {loss) on the disposal of inventory land developed for sale
Proceeds from sales of land developed for sale 1,242,782 -
Current cost of developed tand seld 17 (413.962) .
’ 828.820 -
6 Capital income
Gain on the sale of capital assets 7 27,375 -
Revaluation of investiment property - land and buildings 19 476,221 -
Revaluation up of property, plant and equipment reversing - -
previous revaluation down 20 624,450 -
1,128,046 -
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2014 2013
Note $ 5
7 Gain (Joss) on the disposal of capital assets
Proceeds from the sale of plant and equipment 160,000 205,606
Less book value of plant and equipment sold {132,625) (265,955)
27,375 (60,349)
8 Employee benefits

Total staff wages and salaries 26,250,004 22,550,302

Councillors' remuneration 735,344 634,748

Annual, sick and fong service leave entitlements 3,766,956 3,845,642

Superannuation 33 3,006,796 2,560,368

33,759,100 26,561,060

Other employee related expenses 724,555 1,874 481

34,483,655 31,463,541
Less capitalised employee expenses (1,566,989) {1.232,691)
32,916,666 30,232,850

Councillor reenuneration represents salary, and other allowances paid in respect

of carrying out their duties,

Total Council employees at 30 June 2014 2013
Elected members 9 5
Administration staff’ 246 189
Depot and outdoors staff’ 187 166

Total full time equivalent employees 442 364

9  Materials and services

Audit of annual financial statements by the Auditor-General of Queensland 201,655 88,200

Professional fees including legal fees 8,381,772 4,398,536

Donations Paid 3L 203,195

Electricity 2,422,349 2,362,595

Refuse collection 1,861,952 589,435

Plant and vehicle expense 2,189,150 2,541,045

FT and telecommunications 2,221,876 2,511,268

Contractors 563,600 7,811,069

Insurance 1,576,119 E,311,066

Rentals - Operating leases 734,836 1,176,122

Revaiuation of land for sale (classified as inventory) 610,270 -

Other material and services 22,276,607 41,300,267

43,351,363 04,382,798
16 Finance costs

Finance costs charged by the Queensland Treasury Corporation 2,002,052 716,171

Bank charges 125,013 124,245

Impairment of receivables and bad debts written off 179,930 -

Refuse sites - change in present value over time 24.050 -

2,331,045 840416

Less capitalised interest (1,315,310} -

1,015,735 840416
11 Depreciation and amoriisation [.i7(e)

(a) Depreciation of non-current asseis
Land and improvements 659,979 726,382
Buildings 1,641,899 1,269,603
Plant and equipment 2,745917 2,896,071
Road, bridge network and drainage 7,804,349 8,161,672
Water 3,292,019 3,032,499
Sewerage 3,010,095 3,090,426
Waste management 68,463 75.694
Aerodrome 175,975 541,328

19,398,696 19,793,675
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2014 2013
Note g 3
(b) Amortisation of other intangible assets
Software 4,139 15,939
4,139 15,939
Total depreciation and amortisation 19,402,835 19,809,614
12 Capital expenses
Loss on the sale of capital assets 7 - 60,349
Loss on write-off of capital assets 13 54,155,423 8018415
Revaluation down of property, plant and equipment 20 (a) - 3,245,815
Loss on market value adjustment to long term debt 25 59.883 -
Total capital expenses 54,215,306 11,324,579
13 Loss on write-off of capital assets
Land and improvements [0,391 1,006,352
Buildings - 570,050
Road, bridge and drainage 50,545,175 5,975,948
Water 1,383,280 142,871
Sewerage 2,216,577 309,309
Waste management - 13,885
12 54,155,423 8.018415
Details of capital asset write-offs
In 2013 expenditure on flood damage was treated as an operating expense. In 2014
the accounting treatment was changed to capitalise flood damage expenditure and
write-off the carrying value of the damaged assets.
Al June 2014 $46,044,456 was written off roads as a result of flood damage.
14 Cash and cash equivalents .10
Cash at bank and on hand 671,740 29,992,518
Beposits at call 27,925,225 114,156,864
Term deposits 38.069.889 -
Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Cash Flows 66,606,854 144,149,382
Cash investments held 18 41,137.038 -
Total cash assets 107,803,892 144,149,382

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subject 10 2 number of internal and external restrictions that limit amounts available for

discretionary or future use. These include

Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date relate to the following cash assets

Unspemt loan monies

Unspent government grants and subsidies

Unspent developer contributions

Internally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date
Funds set aside by council and held in reserves for future projects
Total ungpent restricted cash

Cash and deposils at call are held in the ANZ Bank, Queensland Country Credit

Union, National Australia Bank, Westpac Banking Corporation, Bank of
Queensland and Queensland Treasury, AMP Bank, Suncorp Metway Ltd and
ING Bank (Australia) Lid.

15 Trade and other receivables
(a) Current
Rateable revenue and utility charges
Accrued government operating grants and subsidies
Accrued interest
GST recoverable
Other debtors
Less: Impairment provision

Prepayments
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2% (a) (1)
29 (a) (ii)
29 (&) (i)

29

[.1]

5,762,441 26,100,475
5,475,579 10,204,856
40,929,941 34,634,327
32,638,277 58,684,722
104,806,238 129,624,380
1,670,345 1,884,635
3,692,190 2,555,741
1,722 349 1,345,778
909,377 2,359,002
2,204,533 5,667,120
(259,750) (199.404)
9935044 13.612,872
1,395 996 232,157
11,335.040 13,845,029
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2014 2013
Note S kY
{b)} Non-current
Deferred debtors 104,493 -
Loans and advances to controlled entities and associates 8,265,963 7,668,867
8.370.458 7,668,867
Interest is charged on outstanding rates at a rate of 1% per annum, No intérest is
charged on other debtors. There is no concentration of credit risk for rates and
utility charges, fees and other debtors receivable.
All loans and advances relate to loans made to various community bodies.
These loans arise from time to time and are subject to negotiated interest rates.
Movement in accumnulated impairment losses (trade and other receivables)
Opening balance at [ July 199,404 205,916
Impatrment adjustment during the year 60.346 {6.512)
Closing balance at 30 June 259.750 199,404
16 Inventories 1.12
Current
Inventories for internal use
Quarry and road materials 1,771 425 1,601,955
Stores and materials 635,318 1,128,720
2,406,743 2,730,675
Valued at cost, adjusted when applicable for any Joss of service potential,
Land purchased for development and sale 17 24,518,159 7.223.749
Total inventories 26,924,902 9,954 424
17 Land purchased for development and sale 1.14
Balance at beginning of the financial year 7,223,749 7,749,125
Transferred from other asset category - (2,839,501)
Land acquired in period 17,003,332 2314217
Capitalised interest in period 1,315,310 -
Less cost of developed land sold (413,962) -
Valuation adjustment as at 30 June 2014 (610.270) -
Balance at end of the financial year 24,518,159 7,223,749
Land purchased for development and safe is valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
i8 Cash investments
Fixed term held with other institutions realisable between 3 and 12 months -
unrestricted 41,137.038 -
41,137,038 -
Term deposits at fixed interest rates are held with the National Australia Bank,
Westpac Bank, and ING Bank. Maturity ranges from 4 to 10 months and bear
interest rates from 3.8% to 3.9%.
19 Investment propertics
Property held for rental income and capital growth 13,513,958 13,037,737
Fair value at end of the financial year 13,513,958 13,037,737
Movement in assets during the reporting period
Property held for rental income and capital growth
Fair value at beginning of the financial year 13,037,737 10,198,144
Fair value of assets transferred from other asset category - 2,839,503
Revaluation adjustiment to income siatement 6 476,221 -
Fair value at end of the financial year 13,513,958 13 037,737
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financizl statements
For the year ended 30 June 2614

2014 2013

Note 3 b
All investment property was valued at fair value by Australian Pacific Valuers Pty
Ltd trading as APV Valuers and Asset Management, an independent
professionaily qualified valuation finm, as at 30 June 2014. APV Valuers have
extensive experience in valuing properties of this nature in the Isaac Regional
Counci] and surrounding areas.
Further information about the valuation techniques used to derive fair value are
included in note 21.

Income from the investment property is shown in note 3 .

Investment property does not include community housing. -
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

20 (2) Property, plant and equipment

Note
Basis of measurement
Asset Values
Opening gross valse as al | July 2013
Minor correction to epening balance 17
Additions at cost *
Contributed assets at valuation
Internal transfers from work in progress
Disposals 7
Write-offs 12
Revaluation adjustment to other comprehensive 27

ncome. {refer the ARS*)
Revaluation adjustiment to capital income 6
Intera] transfers between asset classes
Closing gross value as at 30 June 2014

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Opening balance as at 1 July 2013
Minor correction to opening balance 37
Depreciation provided in pericd 11
Depreciation on disposals 7
Bepreciation on write-offs 12
Revaluation adjustment to other comprehensive 27
income, {refer the ARS®)
Revaluation adjustment fo capital income 3
Intemal teansfers to other asset classes
Accumutated depreciation as at 30 June 2014

Total book value as at 30 June 2014
Range of estimated useful life in years
Addition of renewal assets
Addition of other assets
Total additions in period
* ARS denotes - Asset Revaluation Surplus

Land and Buitdings Plant and Office fumiture {Road, bridge and Water Sewerage Waste Acrodrome Works in Tatal
improvements equipment and filtings drainage management Progress
Valualion Valuation Cost valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation Yaluation Valuation Cost
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2814 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
§ § 3 s 5 N s s 3 3 5
72,338,388 127.246,413 25,739401 - 523,329,331 170.503.716 146,711,253 1.175.36¢ | 8.920.907 19,948464 1 1.095913.234
941.089 2.204.569 - - 4.984.742 2.064.500 1.686,600 - . 838.957 12,920,457
- - “ - 46.044.456 - - - . 33.407.219 79,451,675
- 226.825 - - 2.586.783 - - - n 2.813,608
2,544,337 1.600.168 4,036,093 - 14,742,609 1,569,914 3.481.732 319,909 261,665 | (28.556.427) -
- - (212,700) - - “ - - - (212,700
(10.391) « - - (50.826.255) (1.996,501) (3.028.388) - - - (55.861.535)
13,258.834 1375218 - - 24,559,851 3,363,286 (1.128.012) 173,047 - 41.602,223
- - - - - - - - 332,787 332,787
18,328 115.782 - - - 4,665 (4.665) (134,110 - -
89.090.585 132,768,974 29,562,794 - 565421517 175.509.580 147,718,519 1.534.207 0.515.350 | 25638213 1,176,759.749
6.225,887 21,025,062 9,942,896 - 66.172.583 51,912,663 43.362,000 361.572 1,700,223 200,702,976
136,779 119.248 - - 184,319 349,823 265,128 - - 1,051,297 |
659,979 1.641.899 2745917 . 7.804.349 3.292.01% 3,010,095 68,463 175.975 19,398,696 !
- “ (80.075) - - - - - . {80,075}
SPRSISSNCSUN SUUNUNS SOV VUSRS SRS SO 1 X:.1) T 1) NSO L1 oY DO IO DX
2.600.269 (3.671.926) - - {7.627.454) (9,171,387 (5,722,236} (62.540) - (23,655,274}
- - - - - - - - (291.663) {291,663)
88,339 7.438 {7.520) - - 1.162 (1.162) (88.257) - -
9,711,253 10.121.721 12,601,218 B 66,252,717 45.771.059 40,098.104 279.238 1.584.535 195.419.845
79,379,332 113,647,253 16,961,576 - 499,163,800 129,738,521 107.620.415 1,254.969 7.930.824 | 25.638.213 981,339,904
5- 100 3-100 5 - 20 5 - EX) 5-100 5 - 100 5. 10 10 - 50
- - - - 46,044,456 - - - - 15,796,917 61,841,373
- 226.825 - - 2.586.783 - - . - 18.449.259 21.262.867
- 226.825 - - 48,631,239 - “ - - 34,2461 76 33104240
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Notes to the financial sizlements
For the year ended 30.June 2014

26 (a) Property, plant and equipment - prior year

Basis of measurement

Asset Values
Opening gross valuc as at § July 2012
Additions at cost
Internal teansfers from work in progress
Disposals
Write-offs
Revaluation adjust to other comprehensive income.
(refer the ARSY)
Revaluation adjustment to capital loss
Recognitionfehange of future rehabilitation costs
Closing gross value as at 30 June 2013

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Opening balance as at 1 July 2012
Depreciation provided in period
Depreciation on disposals
Depreciation on write-offs
Revaluation adjust to other comprehensive income.
(refer the ARS™)
Revaluation adjustment fo capital loss
Reeognition of open balance on rehabilitation costs

Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2013

Totat book value as at 30 June 2013

Range of estimated useful life in years
* ARS denofes - Asset Revaluation Surplus

ovD
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Nole

12
27
12

11

12

12

Land and Buildings Plant and Office furniture [Road, bridge and Water Sewerage Waste Acrodrome Works in Total
improvements equipment and fittings drainage management progress
Valuation Valuation Cost valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation Cost
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
$ 5 $ s 3 5 5 M b 5 S
70.226.677 119,350,861 22,069,956 - 450,632,064 167,570,382 128,873,367 _....B28,594 11,486,114 43.220.299 1.056.258,314
- - - - - - - - - 40,740,244 40,740,244
2,582,334 8.479.365 4,492,800 - 28.377.537 3,107,606 £8,378.487 360,652 233298 | {66.012.07%) -
- - (823.355) - : ; - - - (23355
(1.006.352) (583.813) - - (6,600,622} {174,272) (540.601) {13.885) - - (8,919,545)
- . - - 10.920.352 - - - - 10,920,352
JEUUETUN-S S-S R SN, NSNS S-S : L 2TIRSON) o (2798505
535,729 535.720
72.338,388 127.246.413 25,739.401 - 5§23.329.331 170,503,715 146,711.253 1,175,361 8.920,907 19,948.454 1.095.9§3.234
5.247.455 19,769,222 7.604,225 - 44,807,408 48911565 40,502,956 285.878 711,585 mmq,uue,mnm_!
726,382 1.269,603 2,896,071 - 3161672 3.032.49% 3,090,426 75,694 541,328 19.793.675
- - {557.400) - - - - - - (557.400)
- (13.763) - - (624.674) (31.401) (231.290) - - {901,130)
93,504 - - - 13.738.177 - - - - 13,831,681
SO US ERE-JOVON SOURIUT=NSN NS N O et AR 447310
R e e ! NS (NN £ %73
6.225.887 31,025,062 9,942,896 - 606,172,583 51,912,663 43.362.050 361.572 1.700.223 200.702.976
(. .66.172.501 [ 106221351 | _ 15.796.605 | - 457156748 | 18.591.053 | 103,349,153 | 813,789 | 7220684 | 19,948 464 | 895.210,258 |
L 5-100 | 3-900 | 5-20 | P s5-160 1 5-100 | 5100 | 5-10 [ 10-50 | i ]
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2014
21 Fair Value Measerements

(i) Recognised fair value measurements
Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
- Land and improvements
- Buildings
- Road, bridge network and drainage
- Water infrastructure
- Sewerage infrastructure
- Waste management
- Aerodrome

Coungil does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis.

Council has assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed in other notes,

Council borrowings are measured at amortised cost with interest recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The fair value of borrowings disclosed in note 25 is
and represents the contractual undiscounted cash flows at balance date (level 2).

provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporation
The carrying amounts of trade receivables and teade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature {Level 2).

Council also has assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as a result of being reclassified as assets held for sale.

A description of the valuation techniques and the inputs used to determine the fair value of this land is included below under the heading "Land (fevel 2)".

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis
. Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)
Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (level 2)
Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and Hability (level 3)

The following table categorises fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3 in accordance with AA

SB 13. Council does not have any asscts or liabilities measured at fair value which mect the criteria for
categorisation as level I,

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is available, and minimise the use of entity specific estimates, I all significant nputs
required 1o fair value an asset are observable, the asset is inchuded in level 2. IFone or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for
Council infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist nature for which there is o active market for similar or identical assets. These assets are valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs.

QvD
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 Junc 2014

21 Fair Value Measurements - continued

The table presents the Council's assets and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2014. Comparative information has not been provided as allowed by the transitional provisions of AASB 13
Fair Valee Measurement

Note Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
(Significant other (Significant
observable inputs) unobservable inputs)
2014 2014 2014
5 $ §
Recurring fair value measurements
Invesunent Property 19
- Investment property - Land and Buildings 13,513,958 13,513,958
Property, plant and equipment 20
- Land and improvements 79379332 79,379,332
- Buildings 113,647,253 113,647,253
- Road, bridge network and drainage 499,168,800 499,168,300
- Water infrastructure 129,738,521 129,738.521
- Sewerage infrastructure 107,620,415 107620415
- Waste management 1,254,969 1,254,969
- Aerodrome 7.930,824 7.930.824
206,540,543 745,713,530 952,254,073

D —— il AL

There were no transfers between levels | and 2 during the year, nor between levels 2 and 3.
Council's policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

(i} Valuation techniques used to derive fair vatues for level 2 and ievel 3 valuations
Council adopied AASB13 Fair Value Measurement for the first time this financial

year and has reviewed each valuation to ensure compliance with the requirements of the new standard. There have been no
changes in valuation techniques as a result of this review.

Specific vatuation techniques used to value Council assets comprisc

Property, plant and cquipment
Land and improvements, buildings and other structures
As at 30 June 2014 a comprehensive revaluation was undertaken of Councils land and improvements, buildings and other structures assets by APV Valuers and Asset Management,
The main level 3 inputs used are derived and evaluated as follows,

OvD
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

21 Fair Value Measurements - continued
(1) Cost for land restricted in use {non-saleable)
Estimate cost to replace the existing land if Council had to acquire it on the open market in competition with other market participants. Due to the restricted nature and unique characteristics of this land
there was insufficient market evidence of directly comparable sales. Reference was made to sales of land with 2 limited level of comparability at distant locations and adjusted by the Valuer using

professional judgement to take account of the differing characteristics. These were evaluated for reasonableress against the price per area for other restricted in use land held by the Council that had been
valued at level 2.

{2) Long term rental yields in potentially velatile market

The market rental used were based on an analysis of current market rental vields. While there was sufficicnt evidence of existing market rental yiclds, due to the cyclical nature of the mining sector, there

were concerns raised over the long term demand for properties and the associated impact on long tenn yields. The volatility of these assumptions were considered sufficiently high by the professional ly
qualified valuers who completed the valuation to recommend disclosing the valuation inputs for these properties as level 3

(3) Relationship between asset consumption rating scale and the level of consumed service potential

Under the cost approach the estimated cost to replace the asset is calculated and then adjusted to take account of an accumulated depreciation. in order to achieve this the Valuer determines an asset
consumption rating scale for each asset type based on the inter-relationship between a range of factors. These factors and their relationship to the fair value require professional judgement and include asset
condition, legal and commercial obsolescence and the determination of key deprecintion related assumptions such as residual value, useful life and pattern of consumption of the fiture economic benefit,

The conswmption rating scales were based initially on the past experience of the valuation firm and indus

own engineers, assets management and finance staff. The results of the valuation were further evaluated
potential,

try guides and were then updated to take into account the experience and understanding of Council's
by confirmation against Council's own understanding of the asscts and the level of remaining service

Valuation techniques wsed to derive fair values.
(i) Recurring fair value measurements

The following methods are used to determine the fair value measurements

Land

Level 2 valuation inputs

These were used to value land held in frechold title (investment and non-investment) as well as land vsed for special purposes which is restricted in use under current zoning rules, Sales prices of
comparable land sites in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach arc price per square metre,

proximity. These were subsequently values at the level 3 valuation input
ot in close proximity which provided only a low level of comparability.

There were also some parks and reserves For which there was no observable evidence of sales prices for comparable sites in close
hierarchy by using the professional judgement of 1 registered Valuer who adjusted the price per square metre of sales from sites o

ovo
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 38 June 2014

21 Fair Value Measurements - continued
Buildings and investment properties

Level 2 valuation inputs

These were used to determine the fair value of a range of properties. These included the bulk of residential and commercial properties. The residential properties fair valuc has been derived from sales prices
of comparable properties after adjusting for differences in key attributes such as praperty size, The most significant inputs into this valuation approach are price per square metre.

Level 3 valuation

inputs

Specialised building were valued using the cost approach using professionally qualified registered valucs. The approach estimated the replacement cost for cach building by componentising the buildings
into significant parts with different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors. These inciuded the average cost of construction and consumption score for each component. As these arc
supported by observable market evidence they have been classified as fevel 2 inputs. The unobseevable inputs (such as estimates of residual values, useful life, pattern of consumption and asset condition

and its relationship to the assessed level of remaining service potential of the depreciable amount) required extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair
value. As such thesc assets were classified as having been valued using level 3 valuation inputs.

The quantitative disclosures of the remaining service potential relating to each corresponding condition score for each of the patterns of consumption utilised in this valuation are,

% RSP of depreciable amount
Consumption score Description Straight-line Low Mod High Extreme
New or very good condition - very high level of remaining service
0 potential. 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
I Not new but in very good condition with no indicators of any future
obsolescence and providing a high level of remaining service potential, 85% 92% 94% 98% 100%
2 Aged and in good condition, providing an adequate leve] of remaining
service potential. No signs of immediate or short term obsolescence. 50% 65% 75% 85% 99%
Providing an adequate level of remaining service potential but there
3 are some concerns over the asset’s ability to continue to provide an
adequate level of service in the short to medium term, May be signs of
obsolescence in short to mid-term, 25% 40% 54% T0% 90%
Indicators showing the need to renew, upgrade or scrap in the near
3 4 future. Should be reflected by inclusion in the capital works plan to
2 tenew of replace in short-term, Very low level of remaining service
W potential. 10% 20% 34% 45% 70%
Q) At intervention point. No longer providing an acceptable level of
m T 5 service. If remedial action is not taken immediately the asset will need
=0 ; to be closed or decommissioned. 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
3 6 Theoretical end of life. Fully written off
S
)
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MNotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

21 Fair Value Measurements - continued
Fair value sensitivity to unobservable inputs
The following table provides a summary of the unobservahle inputs and an assessment of the sensitivity of these to the fair value measurement,

Sensitivity to unobservable market Amount of potential impact
Assct Level of valuation input Unobservable inputs Lower Upper Lower Upper
Buildings (cost approach) - 3 Condition of the asset where based on condition as
Specialised buildings supplied by Council -2,50% 2.50% -$2,700,864 $2,700,864
Other structures 3 Relationship hetween asset consumption rating scale -2.50% 2.50% -$374,282 $374,282

Road, bridge network and drainage
As at 30 June 2014 a comprehensive revaluation was undettaken of Councils road, bridge and drainage assets by APV Valuers and Asset Management,
The main level 3 inputs used are derived and evaluated as follows.

Asset Condition

The nature of road infrastructure is that there is a very large sumber of assets which camprise The network and as a result it is not physically possible to inspect every assets for The purpose of completing
a valuation. as a consequence reliance is placed on The accuracy of data held in The Asset managemnent system and its associated intemal controls, This includes regular planned inspections and updates to
The system following maintenance activities and renewal treatments.

To provide assurance over the accuracy of this information and taki ng into account the cost-benefit of undertaking physical inspections the valuation relies wpon a sampling approach {18% overall} where
the data held in the system is verified by a plysical inspection. While the sampling approach, combined with internal controls associated with the asset management system, provides a high level of comfort
over the condition data held in the asset management system it does not provide a guarantee that all the data is correct and the condition as recorded is valid as at fhe date of valuation,

Relationship between asset consumption rating scale and the level of consemed service potential

Under the cost approach the estimated cost to replace the asset is caloulated and then adjusted to take account of an accumulated depreciation. in order to achieve this the Valuer determines an asset
consumption rating scale for each asset type based on the inter-refationship between a range of factoss. These factors and their relationship to the fair value require professional judgement and include assct
condition, legal and commercial obsolescence and the determination of key depreciation related assumptions such as residual value, useful life and paitern of consumption of the future economic benefit.

The consumption rating scales were based initiztly on the past experience of the valuation firm and industry guides and were then updated to take into account the experience and understanding of Council's
own engineers, ssets management and finance staff, The results of the valuation were further evaluated by confirmation against Council's own understanding of the assets and the level of remaining service
potential,

Valuation techniques used to derive fair values

(i) Recurring fair value measurements
The following methods are used to determine the fair value measurements
All road network infrastructure assets were valued using level 3 valuation inputs using the cost approach,

QvD
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

21 Fair Value Measurements - continued
The approach estimated the replacement cost for each asset by compensating the assets into significant parts with different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors. While the unit ratcs based
on square inetre or similar capacity could be supported from market evidence (level 2) other inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life, pattern of consumption and asset condition) required
extensive professional judgement and impacted significamtly on the final determination of fair value. As such these assets were classified as having been valued using level 3 valuation inputs.

During the year there were a number of new projects completed where the actual cost was recorded and the impact of depreciation at year end was negligible. While these could be classified as vatued at
tevel 2 given the fow proportion of the total portfolio that these reptesented and the likelihood that in future valuations they would most likely be values at level 3 we have adopted a policy that all road
network infrastructure assets are deemed to be valued at level 3.

The quantitative disclosures of the remaining service potential relating to each correspording condition score for each of the patterns of consumption utilised in this valyation are.

% RSP of depreciable amount

Consumption score Description Straight-line Low Mod High Extreme

New or very good condition - very high level of remaining service
0 potential, 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

1 Not new but in very good condition with no indicators of any future
obsolescence and providing a high level of remaining service potential, 85% 92% 94% 98% 100%

2 Aged and in good condition, providing an adequate level of remaining
service potential. No signs of immediate or short term obsolescence. 50% 65% 75% 85% 99%

Providing an adequate level of remaining service potential but there

3 are some concems over the asset's ability to continue to provide an
adequate level of service in the short to medium teom. May be signs of
obsolescence in short to mid-term, 25% 40% 54% 70% 0%

Indicators showing the need to renew, upgrade or scrap in the near

future. Should be reflected by inclusion in the capital works plan to
rencw of replace in shon-term. Very low level of remaining service
potential. 10% 20% 34% 45% 70%

At intervention point. No longer providing an acceptable level of
5 service. If remedial action is not taken immediately the asset will need
to be closed or decormmissioned,

6 Theoretical end of life, Fully written off

(if} Non~-recurring fair value measurements

No assets were valued as a non-recurring valuation.

ovOD
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

21 Tair Value Measurements - continued
Fair value sensitivity to unobservable inputs

The follewing table provides a summary of the uncbservable inputs and an assessment of the sensitivity of these to the fair vatue measurcment.

Sensitivity to unobservable market Amount of potential impact

Assot Level of valuation input Unobservable inputs Lower Upper Lower Upper
Infrastructure {cost approach) 3 Condition of the asset where based on condition as -3.00% 3.00% -515,072.479 315072479
3 Relationship between asset consumption rating scale -3.00% 3.00% -$15,072,479 $15.072.479

Water and sewerage infrastructure
As at 30 June 2014 a comprehensive revaluation was undertaken of Councils water and sewerage network infrastructure assets by APV Valuers and Asset Management.
The main level 3 inputs used are derived and cvaluated as foliows,

Asset Condition
The nature of water and sewerage network infrastructure is that there is a very large number of assets which comprise the network and as a result it is not physically possible to inspect every assets for the
purpose of completing a valuation, as a consequenee reliance is placed on the accuracy of data held in the asset nanagement system and its associated intemnal controls. This includes regular planned

inspections and updates to the system following maintenance activities and renewal treatments. Likewise, cspecially for water network infrastructure, a large portion of the portfolic is located underground
and may only be inspected on an irregular basis.

Relationship between asset consumption tating scale and the level of consumed service potential - Under the cost approach the estimated cost to replace the asset is caloulated and then adjusted 1o take
account of an accumulated depreciation. in order to achieve this the Valuer determines an asset consumption rating scale for each asset type based on the inter-relationship between a range of factors. Thesc
factors and their relationship to the fair value require professional judgement and include asset condition, legal and commercial obsolescence and the determination ofkey depreciation related assumptions
such as residual value, useful life and pattern of consumption of the future economic benefit.

The consumption rating scales were based initially on the past experience of the valuation firm and industry guides and were then updated to take into account the experience and understanding of Council's
own engineers, assets management and finance staff. The resulis of the valuation were further evaluated by confirmation against Council's own understanding of the assets and the level of rematning service
potential.

Valuation techniques used to derive fair values
(i} Recurring fair value measurements

The following methods are used to determine the fair value measurements
All water network infrastructure assets were valued using level 3 valuation inputs using the cost approach,

2 The approach estimated the replacement cost for each asset by componentising the assets into significant parts with different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors, While the unit rates
Wn based on square metre or similar capacity could be supported from market evidence (level 2) other inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life, pattern of conswunption and asset condition)
m_lu. required extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair value, As such these assets were classified as having been valued using level 3 valuation inputs,
o8
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ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

21 Fair Value Mcasurements - continued
During the year there were a number of new projects completed where the actual cost was recorded and the impact of depreciation at year end was negligible. While these could be classified as valued at
level 2 given the low proportion of the total portfolio that these represented and the likelihood that in future valuations they would most likely be values at level 3 we have adopted a policy that all water and
sewerage network infrastructure assets are deemed to be valued at level 3.

The quantitative disclosures of the remaining service potential relaling to each corresponding condition score for each of the patterns of consumption wiilised in this valuation are.

% RSP of depreciable amount
Consumption score Description Straight-line Low Mod High Extreme
New or very good condition - very high fevel of remaining service
0 potential. 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
1 Not new but in very good condition with no indicators of any future
vbsolescence and providing a high leve] of remaining service poiential. 85% 92% 94% 8% 100%
2 Aged and in good condition, providing an adequate level of remaining
service potential. No signs of immediate or short term obsolescence. 50% 65% 75% 85% 99%
Providing an adequate level of remaining Service potential but there
3 are some concerns over the asset's ability to continue to provide an
adequate level of service in the short to medium term. May be signs of
obsolescence in short to mid-term, 25% 40% 54% 70% 90%
Indicators showing the need to renew, upprade or scrap in the near
4 future. Should be reflected by inclusion in the capital works plan to
renew or replace in short-term, Very low level of remaining service
potential. 10% 20% 34% 45% 0%
At intervention point. No longer providing an acceptable level of ’
5 service. If remedial action is not taken immediately the asset will need
1o be closed or decommissioned. 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
6 Theoretical end of life, Fully written off

{ii} Non-recurring fair value measurements
No assets were valued as a non-recurring valuation.

Fair value sensitivity to unobservable inputs
The following table provides a summary of the unobservable inputs and an assessment of the sensitivity of these to the fair value measurement.

Sensitivity to unobservable market Amount of potential impact
Asset Level of valuation input Unobservable inputs Lower Upper Lower Upper
Infrastructure (cost approach) 3 Condition of the asset where based on condition as -5.00% 5.00% -$11,840,656 $11,840,656
mvw 3 Relationship between asset consumption rating scale -5.00% 5.00% -$11,840,656 511,840.656
O
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21 Fair Value Measurements - continued
Waste management
As at 30 June 2013 a desktop valuation was undertaken of Councils waste management assets by APV Valuers and Asset Management.

The main level 3 inputs used are derived and evaluated as follows.

Assct Condition

The nature of waste management infrastructure is that there is a very large number of assets which comprise The network and as a result it is not physically possible to inspect every assets for The purpose
of completing a valuation. as a consequence reliance is placed on The accuracy of data held in The Asset management system and its associated internat controls. This includes regular planned inspections
and updates to The system following maintenance activities and renewal treatments.

Indexes were utilised to undertake the desktop valuation developed with referenice to construction guidelines, data from the Australian Bureau of Statistics and market research.

Relationship between asset consumption rating scale and the level of consumed service potential

Under the cost approach the estimated cost 1o replace the asset is calculated and then adjusted to take account of an accumulated depreciation. In order to achieve this the Valuer determines an asset
consumption rating scale for each asset type based on the inter-relationship between a range of factors. These factors and their relationship to the fair value require professional judgement and include asset
condition, legal and commercial obsolescence and the determination of key depreciation related assumptions such as residual value, wseful life and pattern of consumption of the future economic benefit.

The consumption rating scales were based initially on the past experience of the valuation firm and industry guides and were then updated to take into account the experience and understanding of Council's

own engincers, assels management and finance staff, The results of the valuation were further evaluated by confirmation against Council's own understanding of the assets and the levet of remaining service
potential.

Valuation techniques used to derive fair values

(1) Recurring fair value measurements

The following methods are used to determine the fair value measurements

All waste manageiment assets were valued using evel 3 valuation inputs using the cost approach.

The approach estimated the replacement cost for each asset by compensating the assets into significant parts with different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors, While the unit rates based

on square metre or similar capacity could be supported from market evidence {level 2) other inputs {such as estimates of residual value, uscful life, pattern of consumption and asset condition) required
extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair vaiue, As such these assets were classified as having been valued using level 3 valuation inputs.

[v)

o

=

=h

& o During the year there were a number of new projects completed where the actual cost was recorded and the impact of depreciation at year end was negligible. While these could be classified as valued at
[ level 2 given the low proportion of the total porifolio that thesc represented and the likelihood that in future valuations they would most likely be values at level 3 we have adopted a policy that all waste
m, @) management assets are deemed to be valued at Jevel 3.
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21 Fair Value Measurements - continued
The quantitative disclosures of the remaining service potential relating 1o each corresponding condition score for each of the patterns of consumption utilised in this valuation are.

% RSP of depreciable amount

Consumption score Description Straight-line Low Mod High Extreme
. New or very good condition - very high level of remaining service
0 polential. 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
| Not niew but in very good condition with no indicators of any future
obsolescence and providing a high level of remaining service potential, 85% 92% 94% 98% 100%
2 Aged and in good condition, providing an adequate fevel of remaining
service potential. No signs of immediate or short term obsolescence. 350% 65% 75% 5% 99%

Providing an adequate level of remaining service potential but there
are some concerns over the asset'’s ability to continue to provide an
adequate level of service in the short to medium term. May be signs of
obsolescence in short to mid-term. 25% 40% 54% 70% 90%

Indicators showing the need to renew, upgrade or scrap i the near

future. Should be reflected by inclusion in the capital works plan to
renew of replace in short-term. Very low level of remaining service
potential, 10% 20% 34% 45% 0%

At intervention point. No longer providing an acceptable level of
5 service. If remedial action is not taken immediately the asset wil] need
to be closed or decommissioned. 0% 0% 1% 0% 0%

& Theoretical end of life. Fully written off

(i) Non-rccurring fair value measurements
No assets were valued as a non-recurring valuation.

Fair value sensitivity to unobservable inputs
The following table provides a suminary of the unobservable i nputs and an assessment of the sensitivity of these to the fair value measurement,

Sensitivity to unobservable market Amount of potential impact

Asset Level of valuation input Unobservable inputs Lower Upper Lower Upper
Infrastructure (cost approach) 3 Condition of the asset where based on condition as -2.50% 2.50% -$31.374 331,374
f m 3 Relationship between agset consumption rating scale -2.50% 2.50% -$31,374 $31.374
=
2 O Movements in asset classes that have multi-fevel valuation inputs ’
2% The movement in asset classes as disclosed on note 20 to which more than one valuation input level was applicd to derive fair value are teported below.
F0
=
2
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21 Fair Value Mcasurements - continued

2014

Changes in Buildings Level 2 assets Level 3 assets

3 $
Asset value
Opening balance 54,990,533 72,255 880
Error correction 1o opening balance 2,204,569
Additions in period 119,380 1.707.613
Transfers in period 115,782
Revaluation adjustment included in the asset revaluation surplus -1,704,197 3079415
Gross closing balance Buildings 53,521,497 70,247.477
Accumulated
depreciation
Opening balance 9,070,568 11,954,494
Correction to accumulated. depreciation opening balance 119,248
Depreciation in current period 889,354 752,545
Transfer in period 7438
Closing balance of accumulated depreciation 9.967.360 12.826.287
Written down (fair value}) at reporting date 43,554,137 66,421,190

(iv} Valuation processes
Couneil's valuation policies and procedures are set by the executive leadership team. They are reviewed annually taking into consideration an analysis of movements in fair value and other relevant
information. Council's current policy for the valuation of property, plant and equipment and investment property (recurring fair value measurements) is set out in note 1R and [Q respectively. Non-
recurring fair value measurements arc made at the point of reclassification by a registered valuer,

ovO
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2014 2013
Note 8 3
22 Intangible asscts
Computer software
Opening gross carrying value 484,987 484,987
Closing gross carrying value 484,987 484,987
Aecumulated amortisation
Opening balance 430,935 434,996
Amortisation in the period 4,139 15,939
Closing balance 455,074 450,935
Net carrying value at end of the financial year 29,913 34,052
Software has a finite life estimated at three years.
Straight line amoritisation has been used with no residual value.
Total intangible assets 29913 34,052
23 Trade and other payables
Current
Accruals 9,573,512 213,053
Creditors 1.21 1,561,393 16,180,606
Employee related accruals 2,303,226 711,827
GST payable - 685,014
Annual leave [.22(b) 2,000,279 1,690,060
Other entitiements 215,049 250,505
15,653,459 19,740,465
Non Current
Creditors for operational expenses 7,154 312,265
Annual leave 1.22(b) 1,132,787 . 1,146,870
1,139,941 1,459,135
Employee benefit expenses are calculated at current pay levels and adjusted for
inflation and likely future changes in salary level.
The non-cusrent portion of annuat leave and long service leave is then discounted 1o
the present value. Further details on employee entitlements are reported in Note 1.22
24 Provisions
Current
Long service leave 1.22(d) 298,566 359.144
298,566 359,144
Non-Current
Long service leave 1.22(d) 2,217,943 2,046,652
Property restoration
Refuse sites 1.24 2,521,910 651,799
4,719 853 2698451
Details of movements in provisions
Long service leave
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,405,796 2,206,386
Long service leave entitlement arising 293 084 701,222
Long service leave entitlement paid (182371) (501,812
Balance at end of the financial year 2,516,509 2,405,796
Refuse sites
Balance a1 beginning of the financial year 651,79% -
Increase due to change in time 24,050 -
Increase (decrease) due to change in discount rate 56,139 -
Increase due to new site - 651,799
Increase {decrease) in estimate of future cost 1,789,922 -
Balance at end of the financial year 2,521,910 651,799
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2014 2013
Note 5 3
Current portion - -
Non-current portion 2,521,910 651,799
2,521,910 651,799
This is the present value of the estimated future cost of restoring the refuse sites
under the State Government environimental regulations at the end of its useful life.
The projected future cost of all work is $5,003,023 and this is expected 1o be incurred
from 2018 to 2045,
Cash funds committed to meet this Hability at the reporting date are 32,119 -
25 Borrowings
(a) Bank overdraft
Thie council does not have a bank overdraft facility.
(b} Unsecured borrowings
Unsecured borrowings are provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporation,
All borrowings are in $A denominated amounts and carried at amortised cost, interest
being expensed as if accrues. Expected final repayment dates vary from June 2028 to
June 2034.
There have been no defaults or breaches of the loan agreement during the period.
Principal and interest repayments are made quarterly in arrears.
Borrowings at halance date are
Current
Queensland Treasury Corporation 1,417,222 1,309,402
Non Current
Queensland Treasury Corporation 38.320,946 40,238,159
Movements in borrowings
Queensland Treasury Corporation
Bock value at beginning of the financial year 41,547 561 12,134,220
Loans raised - 29,800,000
Principal repayments (1,869,276) (386,659)
Adjustment to loan value due to change in interest rates. 59,883 -
Book value at end of the financial year 39,738,168 41,547,561
Classified as
Current 1,417,222 1,309,402
Non-cusrent 38,320,946 40,238,159
39,738,168 41,547,561
The QTC ioan market value at the reporting date was $42,501,914.
This represents the value of the debt if Council repaid it at that date. As it is the
intention of Council to hold the debt for its term, no provision is required to be made
in these accounts.
No asseis have been pledged as security by the council for any liabilities.
Borrowings are all in $A and are underwritten by the Queensland State
Government. :
26 Other liabilities
Current
Capital cash contributions with future reciprocal obligation 143,081 143,081
Construction retentions 157.340 -
300,421 143,081
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2014 2013
Note 5 5
27T (i} Asset revaluation surplus
Movements in the asset revaluation surplus
Balance at beginning of the financial year 251,518,548 254,704,493
Adjustments to the property, plant and equipment through revaluations 20
IL.and and improvements 10,658,565 (93,504)
Buildings 5,047,144 -
Road, bridge and drainage 32,187,305 (2,817,825)
Water 12,534,673 -
Sewerage 4,504,224 -
Waste management 235,587 -
65,257,497 (2,911,329}
Change in value of future rehabilitation cosis charged to the surplus (1,846,061} (274,616)
Balance at end of the financial year ' 314,929,984 251,518,548
(i1) Asset revaluation surplus analysis
The closing balance of the asset revaluation surplus is comprised of the
following asset categories
Land and improvements 25,873,634 17,061,130
Buildings 32,589,415 27,542,271
Road, bridge and drainage 145,721,497 113,534,192
Water 62,881,073 50,346,400
Sewerage 47,628,779 43,034,555
Waste management 235,587 -
314,929,684 251,518,548
28 Retained surplus / (deficiency) 1.26
Movement in retained surplus
Balance at beginning of the financial year 636,808,984 648,985,889
Error correction 1o opening balance - 11,669,160 -
Net result {5,584,849) 16,274,398
642,893,294 665,260,287
Transfers (to)/ from capital reserves for future capital project funding, or from
reserves funds that have been expended or closed
Constrained grants and subsidy contributions rescrve (1,566,337} (21,972,833)
Unspent loan cash reserve 20,338,034 (22,170,521)
Buildings reserve 1,215,608 (4,500,000)
Roads infrastructure reserve - 4,295,107
Water reserve 146,035 2,071,000
Sewerage reserve (3,700,089) 3,263,477
Other infrastructure reserve (1,979,523} 9,382,138
Carry over capital reserve 3,215,561 (4,216,925)
Mines capital projects reserve {1,731,20%) -
15,937,980 (33,848,557}
Transfers (to) recurrent reserves for futare project funding, or from reserves funds
that have been expended or closed
Natural disaster reserve 50,000 -
Constrained works - operational grants reserve 3,111,941 574,128
Mines operating projects reserve 5,718,221 (2,319,851)
NDRRA funding - operational grants reserve - 7,117,585
Community recovery - operational grants 2014 - 25,392
8,880,162 5,397,254
Retained surplus at end of the financial vear 667,711,436 636,808,984
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2014 2013
Note ) b
29 Reserves 1.27
(a) Restricted capital reserves
(i) Unspent toan cash reserve
This cash forms pant of council's capitat value as the balance represents loan cash
drawn down but unspent at balance date. The cash is restricted to specific project
funding.
Balance at beginning of the financial year 26,100475 3,929,954
Loan funds drawn down in period. - 29,800,000
Loan cash expended in period. (20,338,034) (7.629.479)
Balance at end of the financial year 5,762,441 26,100,475
(i) Constrained grants and subsidy contributions reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year 44,839,183 22 866,350
Transfer from retained eamings non reciprocal grants, subsidies and
contributions received and allocated to specific capital projects 47,886,589 21,112,152
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (46,320,252) 860,681
Balance at end of the financial year 46,405,520 44,839,183
Total restricted capital reserves 52,167.961 70,939,658
{b) Other reserves
(1) Summary of capital reserves held for funding future projects
(i) Buildings reserve 6,784,392 8,000,000
(iji) Plant and equipment reserve 1,245,000 1,245,000
{(iv) Roads infrastructure reserve 2,521,212 2,521,212
(v) Water reserve 2,229,686 2,375,721
(vi) Sewerage reserve 4,723 3417 1,023,248
(vii) Other infrastructure reserve 10,696,767 8,717,244
{viii) Community facilities reserve 43,487 43,487
(ix) Carry over capital reserve 21085408 24,300,969
(x) Mines capital projects reserve ],731,299 -
51,060,598 48,226,881
(2) Summary of recurrent reserves held for funding future projects
{i) Natural disaster reserve - 50,000
3,111,941

(ii) Constraincd works - operational grants reserve

(iii) Planning & environmental enforcement - operational reserve 373379 373,379
{iv) Mines operating projecs reserve 1,204,300 6,922,521
(v) NDRRA funding - operational granis reserve - -
(vi) Community recovery - operational grants 2014 - -
1,577.679 10457841
Total other reserves 52,638.277 58.684,722
Total reserves 104,806.238 129,624,380
Movemenis in capital reserves
(ii) Buildings reserve .
Balance at beginning of the financial year $,000,000 3,500,000
Transfer from retained eamings for future expenditure 237,024 5,050,000
“Fransfer to retained earnings funds expended (1.453,532) (550,000)
Balance at end of the financial year 6,784,392 8,000,000
(iii) Plant and cquipment reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year 1,245,000 1,245,000
Balance at end of the financial year 1,245,000 1,245,000
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2014 2013
Note $ $
(iv) Roads infrastructure reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,521,212 6,816,319
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended - (4,295,107)
Balance at end of the financial year 2,521,212 2,521,212
(v} Water reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,375,721 4,446,721
Transfer 1o retained earnings funds expended (146,035) {2,071.000)
Balance at end of the financial year 2,229,686 2,375,721
(vi) Sewerage reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year 1,023,248 4.286,725
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 3,700,099 -
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended - (3,263477)
Balarice at end of the financial year 4,723,347 1,023,248
{vii) Other infrastructure reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year 8,717,244 18,099,382
Transfer from retained eamings for future expenditure 2,250,344 301,100
Trans{er to retained earnings funds expended (270,821} (9,683,238)
Balance at end of the financial year 10,696,767 8,717,244
(viii) Community facilities reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year 43,487 43,487
Balance at end of the financial year 43,487 43.487
(ix} Carry over capital reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year 24,300,969 20,084,044
Trans fer from retained earnings for future expenditure 13,399,895 18,200,365
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (16,615,456} (13,983.440)
Balance at end of the financial year 21 085408 24300969
(x) Mines capital projects reserve
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 3,911,592 -
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (2,180,293) -
Balance at end of the financial year 1,731,299 -
Movements in recurrent reserves
(i) Natural disaster reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year 50,000 50,000
Transfer o retained earnings funds expended {50,000) -
Balance at end of the financial year - 50,000
@) Constrained works - operational grants reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial yeat 3,111,941 3,686,069
Transfer from retained eamings for futare expenditure - 3,115,941
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (3,111,941} (3.686.,069)
Balance at end of the financial year - 3,111,941
(iii) Planning & environmental enforcement - operational reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year 373,379 373,379
Balance at end of the financial year 373.37% 373,379
(iv) Mines operating prejects reserve
Balance at beginning of the financial year 6,922,521 4,602,670
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 527,901 3,547,680
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended {6,246,122) (1,227.829)
1,204,300 6,922,521

Balance at end of the financial year
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2014 2013
Note 5 8

(v} NDRRA funding - operational grants reserve

Balance at beginning of the financial year - 7,117,585

Transfer to retained earnings funds expended - {7.117.585)

Balance at end of the financial year . -
(vi) Community recovery - operational granis 2014

- 25,392

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended - (25,392)
Balance at end of the financial year - -

3¢ Commitments for expenditure
Operating leases
Minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating

leases :
Within one year 657,268 669,913
Later than | year but not later than 5 years 1,631,176 1,492,616
Later than 5 years 5,626,050 5,997,658
7.914.494 8,160,187
Operating leases are entered into for land and equipment. Lease
payments are generally fixed, but with inflation clauses on
which future rentals are determined.
Contractual commitments
Contractual commitments at balance date but not recognised
in the financial statements
Management of Council pools and recreational dams - $443,729 - per year 889.161 1,233,286
Town Maintenance Contracts - $689,381 - per year 175,070 207,758
Library Lease - 511,864 - per year 11,864 21,290
Recreation Reserve - $146,269 - per year 109,802 221462
Communication contracts - 580,941 - per year 162,151 -
Waste Management Collection $2,584,605 - per year 5,863,150 430,794
7,211,207 2,114,580
Capital commitments
Commitment for the construction of the following assets contracted for at the
reporting date but not recognised as liabilities
Infrastructure 3,890,604 3,242,710
Other Assets 1,172,344 1,364,477
5,062,948 4,607,186
These expenditures are payable
Within one year 5,062,948 4,607,186
Later than ] year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - 0
5.062.048 4.607.186

31 Events after balance date
There were no malerial financial adjusting events after balance date.

32 Contingent liabilities
Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities

(a} Native Title Claims over Council Land
At 30 June 2012, thirteen native title claims have been received in respect of council
land covering a total area of 162.8 hectares in the Isaac Regional Council area, The
{and has a catrying amounit of $3.03 million.
At reporiing date it is not possible to make an estimate of any probable outcome of
these claims, or any financial effects.
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2014 2013

Note 5 5

(b} Contractor Dispute

Council is currently in legal dispute with a contractor in regards to works undertaken
with funding from the NDRRA program. The financial impact to Council is not yet
known with any certainty, however, it is not considered by management that it will
not be a material amount.

Local Govemment Workcare

The Isaac Regional Council is a member of the Queensland local

government workers compensation self-insurance scheme, Local Government

Workcare. Under this scheme the Council has provided an indemnity towards a bank

guarantee to cover bad debts which may remain should the self insurance licence

be cancelled and there was insufficient funds available to cover outstanding

linbilities. Only the Queensland Government's workers compensation authority

may call on any part of the guarantee should the above circumstances arise.

The Council's maximum exposure to the bank guarantee is 1,070.436 897.604

Local Government Mutual

The Council is a member of the local government mutual liability self-insurance

pool, LGM Queensland. In the event of the pool being wound up or it is unable

to meet its debts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any

accumulated deficit will be met by the individual pooi members in the same

proportion as their contribution is to the total pool contributions in respect to

any year that a deficit anses.

As at 30 June 2013 the financial statements reported an accumulated surplus and

it is not anticipated any Hability will arise, 22,557,143 14,173 836

33 Superannuation
The Council contributes 1o the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Q1d) (the
scheme). The scheme is a Multi-employer Plan as defined in the Australian

Accounting Standard AASBI19 Employee Benefils .

The Queensland Local Government Superannuzation Board, the trustee of the scheme,
advised that the local povernment superannuation scheme was a complying
superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commonswealth Superannuation
Industry {Supervision) legislation.

The scheme has three elements referred to as -
The City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers former members of the City
Super Defined Benefits Fund;
The Regional Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefit
fund members working for regional local governments; and
The Accumulation Benefits Fund (ABF).

The ABF is a defined contribution scheme as defined in AASB 119. Council has no
liability to or interest in the ABF other than the payment of the statutory contributions
as required by the Local Government Act 2009 .

Council does not have any employees who are members of the CDBF and, therefore,
is not exposed 1o the obligations, assets or costs associated with this fund.

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AASB119. The Council is
not able to account for the Regional DBF as a defined benefit plan in accordance with
AASB119 because the scheme is unable to account to the Council for its
propertionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and costs. The
funding policy adopted in respect of the Regional DBF is directed at ensuring that the
benefits accruing to members and beneficiaries are fully funded as they fatt due,
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2014 2013
Note 5 $
To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regional DBF, the scheme's trustee can vary
the rate of contributions from relevant local government employers subject to advice
from the scheme's actuary. As at the reporting date, no changes had been made to
prescribed employer contributions which remain at 12% of employee assets and there
are no known requirements to change the rate of contributions.
Any amount by which the fund is over or under funded would only affect future
benefits and contributions to the Regional DBF, and is not an asset or liability of the
Council. Accordingly there is no recognition in the financial statements of any over
or under fimding of the scheme.
As at the reporting date, the assets of the scheme are sufficient to meet the vested
benefits.
The most recent actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July
2012, The actuary indicated that “the Regional DBF is currently in a satisfactory but
modest financial position and remains vulnerable 1o adverse short and medium term
experiences.,
Following the previous actuarial assessment in 2009, councils were advised by the
rustee of the scheme, following advice from the scheme’s actuary, that additional
contributions may be imposed in the future al a leve] necessary to protect the
entitiecments of Regional DBF members. In the 2012 actuarial report the actuary has
recommended no change to the employer contribution levels at this time.
Under the Local Government Act 2009 the trustee of the scheme has the power to
levy additional contributions on councils which have employees in the Regional DBF
when the actuary advises such additional contributions are payable - normally when
the assets of the DBF are insufficient to meet members' benefits.
There are currenily 72 entities contributing to the Regional DBF plan and any
changes in contribution rates would apply equaily to all 72 entities, Isaac Regional
Council made less than 4% of the total contributions to the plan in the 2013-14
financial year.
The next actuarial investigation will be conducted as at 1 July 2015.
The amount of superannuation contributions paid by Isaac Regional Council
to the scheme in this period for the benefit of employees was 3,006,796 2,560,368
34 Trust funds 1.31
Trast funds held for outside parties
Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities yet
to be paid out to or on behalf of those entities 41,980 41,980
Security deposits 490,567 758,549
532,547 800,529
The Isaac Regional Council performs only a custodial role in respect of these monies,
and because the monies cannot be used for Council purposes, they are not brought to
account in these financial statements,
35 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash
inflow (outflow) from eperating activities
Net result (5,584,849 16,274,398
Non-cash operating items
Lmpairment of receivables and bad debts writien off’ 10 179,930 -
Depreciation and amortisation 11 19,402,835 19,809,614
Current cost of developed land sold 17 413,962 -
Change in restoration provisions expensed to finance costs 24,050 -
Revaluation of inveniory land expensed to materials and services 610,270 -
20,631,047 19.809.614
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Notes fo the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013
Note $ 8
Investing and development activities
Capital grants, subsidies and contributions 4 (50,700,197} (21,112,152)
Capital income 6 (1,128,046) -
Capital expenses 12 54,215,306 11,324,579
Payment for land for sale and development costs in the period (17,003,332) {2,314,217)
(14,616,269) (12,101,790)
Finaneing activities
Capitalised interest (1,315,310} -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in receivables 2,704,381 (1,308,334)
(Increase) decrease in inventories (excluding land) 323,032 {757,99%)
Increase (decrease) in payables (6,200,335) 5,233.917
Increase (decrease) in provisions 110,713 199,410
(3,061,299) 3,366,994
Net cash inflow from operating activities (2,631.370) 27.349.216
36 Controlied entities that have not been consolidated
Isaac Affordable Housing Fund Pty Ltd
In November 2010, the council formed the Isaac A ffordable Housing Fund Pty Ltd
and has 100% ownership of the company. The company was formed to fund affordable
housing within the region.
The council’s total contribution to the company’s share capital is 51,
Isaac Affordable Housing Fund Pty Lid {Company) acts as trustee for the Isaac
Affordable Housing Trust Fund (IAFHT) established under the Trust Deed dated 25th
November 2010. Isaac Affordable Housing Fund Pty Lid was the trustee for the IAFHT
for the entire year and the sole activity for the Company was to act as trustee for the
Trust. The Company does not trade in it's own right.
The Trust was established and must be maintained exclusively for public charitable
purposes in Australia, being the purposes of providing money, property or benefits.
(a) to establish and maintain the Isaac Affordable Housing Fund;
(b} to manage the Trust for the purpose of providing affordable housing for the low 1o
middle income people living in the Isaac Regional Council area.
Because the amount of the investment and the transactions of the controlled entity are
not considered material, the entity is not consolidated within the council’s financial
statements.
The Queensland Auditor-General audits the company. Total external audit fees relating
to the 2013-14 financial year are estimated to be $6,500 (2013: $5,400). There are no
non-audit services included in this amount.
A summary of financial results for Jsaac Affordable Housing Trust
Revenues 1,067,316 2,256,191
Expenses (594,311 (207,138
Net Surplus# Deficit) 473,005 2.049.053
Asseis 12,802,383 12,049,757
Liabilities (7320437 (6,757,662}
Net Assets 5.481.946 5,262 005
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013

Note ) 5
Morarbah Early Learning Centre Pty Ltd
In December 2011, the council resolved to establish the Moranbah Early Leaming
Centre Pty Ltd and has [00% ownership of the company. The company was formed
to provide financial support for a community childcare facility within the township of
Moranbah. The council's total contribution to the company's share capital is 510.

The principle activities of the company during the financial year are to provide
financizl support for a community childcare facility in Moranbah.

Because the amount of the investment and the transactions of the controiied entity are
not considered material, the entity is not consolidated within the council's financial

statements.

The Queenstand Auditor-General audits the company. Total external audit fees
relating to the 2013-2014 financial year are to be $16,000 (2013: $17,580). There
are no non-audit services included in this amount.

A summary of financial results for the Moranbah Early Leamning Centre Pty Ltd

1,700,102 1,125,548
(1467.777) (1,947.961)
232,325 (822.413)

Rewvenues
Expenses
Net Surplus/{Deficit)

705,501 462,326
(1,252,954) (1,242,105)
(347,453} (779.778)

Assets
Liabilities
Net Assets

37 Miner correction for assets not previously recognised
During the financial year Council became aware of some assets in property phnt and
equipinent that were not previously recognised as well as some assels previously
recognised that should not have been recognised.
The asset classes affected are disclosed in notes indicated
Summary details of assets not previously recognised are as follows
Gross value of property, plant and equipment 20 12,720,457

Less: Accuimulated depreciation 20 (1,051,297 -
Net value 11,669,160 -
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

38 Financial instruments
Isaac Regional Council has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments
- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk

This note provides information (botk qualitative and quantitative) to assist statement users evaiuate the significance of financial
instruments on the Council's financial position and financial performance, inciuding the nature and extent of risks and how
the Councif manages these exposures,

Financial risk management
Tsaac Regional Council is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework, together

with developing and monitoring risk management palicics.

Council's management approves policies for overall risk management, as well as specifically for managing credit,
liquidity and market risk.

The Council's risk management policies are established 10 identify and anabyse the risks faced, to sel appropriate limits
and conirols and to monitor these risks and adherence against limits. The Council aims to manage volatility to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Isaac Regional Council does not enter into derivatives,

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual abligations.

These obligations arise principally from the Council's invesiments and receivables from cusiomers.

Exposure {0 credit rigk is managed through regular analysis of credil counterpanty ability 10 meet payment obligations.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Investments in financial instruments are required 10 be made with Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) or similar state/
commonwealth bodies or financial institutions in Australia, in line with the requirements of the Statutory Bodies Financial
Arrangements Act 1982,

Nao collateral is held as security relating 1o the financial assets held by Isaac Regional Council,

The following table represents the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the cartying amounts of financial assets at
the end of the reporting period.

Note 2014 2013

Financial assets 3 g

Cash and cash equivalents - Bank 14 671,740 20992518

Cash invesiments held with - QTC 14 19,253,428 30,836,150

Cash investments held with other

approved deposit taking institutions 14&18 87,878,724 83,320,714

Receivables - rates 15 1,670,345 1,884,635

Receivables - other 15 16,639,157 19,397,104
Other credit exposure

Guarantee 32 1,070,436 897,604

Total financial assets 127,183,830 166,328,725
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

38 Financial instruments - continued

Cash and cash equivaients

The Councit may be exposed to credit risk through its investments in the QT'C Cash Fund and QTC Working Capital Facility.

The QTC Cash Fund is an asse! management porifolio that invests with a wide range of high credit rated counterparties.

Deposits with the QTC Cash Fund are capita) guaranteed. Working Capital Facility deposits have a duration of one day and
afl investments are required 10 have a minimum credit rating of "A-", thesefore the likelihood of the counterparty having capacity

to meet its financial commitments is strong.

Other financial assets

Other investments are held with financial institutions, which are rated AA- to A- based on tating Standard & Poor's

agency ratings, and whilst not capital guaranieed, the likelihcod of a credit failure is assessed as remote.

Trade and other receivables

In the case of rate receivables, the Council has the power to sell the property to recover any defaulied amounts. In effect this

power preecis the Council against eredit risk in the case of defaults.

In other cases, the Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and epplies normal business credit

protection procedures to minimise the risk.

By the nature of the Councils operations, there is a geographical concentration of risk in the Council's area. Because the arca
is largely agricultural and mining, there is also a concentration in the agricultural and mining sector,

Ageing of past due receivables and the amount of any impairment is disclosed in the foll owing table.

Not past due Past due Less Total
311060 61090 Over 90 impaired
days days days
$ 3 ) 5 3 3
Receivables
2014 15,676,985 895,088 43,17 1,954,008 (259,750) 18,309,502
2013 10,517,695 1,156,117 60,950 9,746,381 (199,404) 21,281,739

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial

liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Isaac Regional Council is exposed (o liquidity risk through its normal course of business and through its borrowings

with QTC and other financial institfitions,

The Council menages its exposure to liguidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits and undrawn facilities, both short

and long term, 1o cater for unexpected volatilify in cash flows.
These facilities are disclosed in note 25,
The council does not have any overdrafi facilitics at the reporting date.

The following table sets out the liquidity risk in relation 1o financial Liabilities held by the Council, It represents the
remaining contractual cashflows (principal and interest) of financial Habilities at the end of the reporting period,

excluding the impact of nefting agreements.

Page 49

QAO

cerlified statemenis




ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

38 Financial instroments - continued

2014
Trade and other payables
Loans QTC

2013
Trade and other payables
Loans QTC

Cto ] year 1105 years Over 5 years | Total contracteal Carrying
cash flows amount
3 $ 5 $ 5

13,445,285 - - 13,445,285 13,445285
3,355,996 13,423,985 44,713,130 61,493,111 39,738,168
16,801,281 13,423,985 44,713,130 74,938,396 53,183,453
18,102,765 - - 18,102,765 18,102,765
3,500,267 13,922,273 48,906,318 66,328,858 41,547,561
21,603,032 13,022,273 48,906,318 84,431,623 59,650,326

The outflows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly earlier and are not expected to be for significantly

different amounis then indicaled in the table.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Council's income or the value

of its holdings of financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

Isaac Regional Councit is exposed to interest rate risk through investments and borrowings with QTC and other finangial institutions.

Sensitivity

Sensitivity to inlerest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets and liabilitics based on the carrying amount

at reporting date.

The following irterest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (2ssumed
to be 1%%6) would have on the profit and equity, based on the carrying values at the end of the reporting period, The
calculation assumes that the change in interest rates would be held constant over the period.

2014

Other investments
Loans - QTC at fixed and generic *
Net total
2013
Loans - QFC at varigble **
Net total

Net carrying Effect on Net result Effect on equity
amoun| 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
$ $ 5 5 3
8,671,797 86,718 (86,718} 856,718 (86,718)
{39,738,168)
(31,066,371} 86,718 (86,718) 86,718 {86,718)

(41,547,561)

In relatien to the QTC loans held by the Council, the following has been applied:
*QTC Fixed Rate Loan - financial instruments with fixed interest rates which are carried al amortised cost are not subject to

interest rate sensitivity,

*QTC Generic Debi Pogl - the generic debt pool products approximate 2 fixed rate foan. There is a negligible impact on irterest
sensitivity from changes in interest rates for generic debt pool borrowings.

**QTC Client Specific Peol - client specific pool products are ofien rebalanced to a target benchmark duration. This partially
exposes clients o the leve] of interest rates at the fime of rebalancing. Sensitivity on these products is provided by QTC

through calcniating the interest effect over the perod.

The sensitivity analysis provided by QTC is currentty based on a [% change but this is subject to change.
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Fair value
The fair vaiue of trade and other receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the orginal transaction,

less any allowance for impaiment.

The fair value of borrowings with QTC is based on the market value of debt outstanding. The market value of a debt
obligation is the discounted value of future cash flows based on prevailing market rates and represents the amount required
to be repaid if this was to occur at balance date. The market value of debt is provided by QTC and is discussed below and
disclosed in note 25.

QTC zpplies 2 book rate approach in the management of debt and interest rate risk, to limit the impact of market value
movements {o clienis' cost of funding. The book value represents the carrying value based on amortised cost using the

effective interest method.
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39 National competition policy

(3) Business activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied
This requires the application of full cost pricing, identifying the cost of community service obligations (CSO)

and eliminating the advantages and disadvantages of public ownership within that activity,

The CSO value is determined by Council, and represents an activities cost{s) which would not be incurred if
the primary objective of the activities was to make a profit. The Council provides funding from general revenue

to the business activity to cover the cost of providing non-commercial community services or costs deemed o

be CSO's by the Council.

The Isaac Regional Council applies the competitive code of conduct to

Saleyards
Airport Services

Private & Recoverable Works

Fleet Operations

(b) Statements for activities subject to the competitive code of conduct;

Revenue for services provided to the Council
Revenue for services provided to external clients
* Community service obligations

Less expenditure
Surphis (deficiency)

Saleyards Airport Services Private & Fleet Operations
Recoverable
Works
2014 L2014 2014 2014
) $ 5 $
- - - 10,887,156
267,185 1,073,022 5,688,993 812,741
367,300 - - -
634,485 1,073,022 5,688,993 11,699,897
634484 1,537,857 4,991,579 6,697,023
1 {464,835} 697414 5,002,874

(¢} Description of CSO's provided to business activities during the reporting period:

Activities

[cso description

Actual

Saleyards

Community contribution for the economic benefits of providing saleyards services

367,300
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MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE
For the year ended 30 June 2014

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 176 and 177 of the
Local Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements.

In accordance with section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:

(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012
for the establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i) the general purpose financial statements, as set out or pages 1 to 52, present a true and fair view, in
acgordance with Australian Accounting Standards, of the Council’s transactions for the financial year

and financial position at the end of the year,

TR= e

Mayor Acting Cﬁecuﬁve Officer

Name; Cr. Anne Baker Name: Mr Scott Riley

Date: ‘6 /lb /\Li Date: \6/ lb/ \L[
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Mayor of Isaac Regional Council

Report on the Financial Report

| have audited the accompanying financial report of Isaac Regional Council, which comprises
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,
and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

The Council’'s Responsibiiity for the Financial Report

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Local
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, including compliance with
Australian Accounting Standards. The Council’s responsibility also includes such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit
was conducted in accordance with the Audifor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards,
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control,
other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report. .

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.

Independence

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public secior entities

and can be removed only by Parliament.



The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General’'s opinion are

significant.
Opinion

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009 —
(a) I have received all the information and explanations which | have required; and
{b) in my opinion -
(i) the prescribed requirements in refation to the establishment and keeping of
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i)  thefinancial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed
accounting standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of Isaac
Regional Council for the financial year 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 and of the
financial position as at the end of that year.

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report

Those viewing an electronic presentation of these financial statements should note that audit
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the
financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent risks
arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy
of the audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented
information.

QUEENSLANR
29 OCT 7014
AUDJ_T 0[:'(5\0E

0O Lol

DA STOLZ FCP, Queensiand Audit Office
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland) Brisbane




ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Current-year Financial Sustainability Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Measures of Financial Sustainability
(i) Operating surplus ratio

Net result (exciuding all capital items) divided by total operating revenue (excludes capital revenue).

(i) Asset sustainability ratio

Capital expenditure on the replacement of assets (renewals) divided by depreciation expense.

(iiiy Net financial Eabilities ratio

Total liabilities less current assets divided by total operating revenue (excluding capital items).

Council's performance at 30 June 2014 against key financial ratios

Target

Actual

Note I - Basis of Preparation

The current year financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013 . The amounts used to calculate the
three reported measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn from the Council's audited general purpose financial statements for

the year ended 30 June 2014.

Operating Asset Net financial
surplus ratio | sustainability | Liabilities ratio
ratio
between 0% and| greater than | not greater than
10% 90% 60%
-3.41% 318.79% -89.66%

Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2014

This current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepartd pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Government

Regulation 2012 (the regulation).

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this current-year financial sustainability statement

has been accurately calculated,

=

Mayor

Name: Cr_Anne Baker

pate: Vb /|0 4 1Y

Date; \B / \D /\L{
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayor of Isaac Regional Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

I have audited the accompanying current-year financial sustainability statement, which is a
special purpose financial report of Isaac Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2014,
comprising the statement and explanatory notes, and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief
Executive Officer.

The Council’s Responsibility for the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current-year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012.
The Council’s responsibility also includes such internal control as the Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the current-year financial sustainability statement
based on the audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of
Queensiand Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those
standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the statement is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Council’'s preparation and fair presentation of the statement in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’'s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the statement.

My responsibility is to form an opinion as to whether the statement has been accurately
calculated based on the Council’s general purpose financial report. My responsibility does not
extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of the reported ratios, nor
on the Council’s future sustainability.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.



Independence

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities

and can be removed only by Parliament.

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General’s opinion are

significant.
Opinion

In accordance with $.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all
material respects, the current-year financial sustainability statement of Isaac Regional Council
for the year ended 30 June 2014, has been accurately calculated.

Emphasis of Matter — Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, attention is drawn to Note 1 which describes the basis of
accounting. The current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared in
accordance with the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of
fulfiling the Council’s reporting responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012.
As a result, the statement may not be suitable for another purpose.

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Statement

Those viewing an electronic presentation of this special purpose financial report should note that
audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the financial
statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent risks arising
from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy of the
audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented information.

Q\}EENSL,!M,,n

29 0CT 2014

dUoir oFrICE

K. g~
DASTO PA Queensiand Audit Office
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland) Brisbane




ISAAC REGIONAL COUNCIL

Long-Term Financial Sustainability Statement
Prepared as at 30 June 2014

Measures of Financial Sustainability
(i) Operating surplus ratio
Operating surplus (Net result excluding all capital items) divided by total operating revenue (excludes capital revenue).
(i} Asset sustainability ratio
Capital expenditure on the replacement of assets (renewals) divided by depreciation expense.
{iii) Net financial liabilities ratio
Total kiabilities less current assets divided by total operating revenue.

Council's performance at 30 June 2014 against key financial ratios

Operating Asset Net financial
surplus ratic | sustainability | liabilities ratio
ratio
Target between 0% and| greater than | not greater than
10% 90% 60%

Actuals at 30 June 2014 -3.41% 318.7%% -89.66%
Projected for the 30 June 2015 2.16% 105.01% -50.83%
30 June 2016 1.55% 74.97% -51.01%
30 June 2017 10.57% 77.38% -50.27%
30 June 2018 10.57% 79.95% ~55.24%
30 June 2019 7.78% 82.53% -59.09%
30 June 2020 6.56% 85.14% -61.25%
30 June 2021 5.44% 87.86% -63.65%
30 June 2022 6.16% 90.60% -63.56%
30 June 2023 6.49% 92.61% -63.84%

Financial Management Strategy
Council measures revenue and expenditure trends over time as a guide to future requirements and to make decisions about the efficient allocation

of resources 1o ensure the most effective provision of services. Council ensures that its finahcial management strategy is prudent and that its long-
term financial forecast shows a sound financial position whilst also being able to meet the community’s current and future needs,

Certificate of Accuracy
For the long-term financial sustainability statement prepared as at 30 June 2014

This long-term financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012 (the regulation),

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this Jong-tenm financial sustainability statement

has been accurately calculated.

= )e s

Mayor

Name: Cr_Anne Baker

pate: U 7 \D /\Ll Date: Ho R EL[




